SIGNATURE GROUP HOLDINGS INC Form 10-O

Form 10-Q July 05, 2011

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-O

	FORM IC) - Q
R	QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13	OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
	OF	
	1934	
	For the Quarterly Period E	Ended June 30, 2010
	or	
£	TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13	OR $15(D)$ OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
	OF	
	1934	
	For the transition period from	to
	Commission File Nun	nber 001-08007
	SIGNATURE GROUP I	HOLDINGS, INC.
	(Exact Name of Registrant as	Specified in its Charter)
	Nevada	95-2815260
	(State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or	
	Organization)	(I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)
	15303 Ventura Blvd., Ste 1600	
	Sherman Oaks, California 91403	(805) 435-1255
((Address of Principal Executive Offices)(Zip Code)	(Registrant's Telephone Number, including Area Code)
ndi	licate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all t	reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90days. £ Yes R No

Indicate by checkmark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Website, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). £ Yes £ No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

£ Large Accelerated Filer

£ Accelerated Filer

£ Non-Accelerated Filer (Do not check if a smaller reporting R Smaller Reporting Company

company)
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act).£ Yes R No
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Section 12, 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 subsequent to the distribution of securities under a plan confirmed by a court.£ Yes R No
The number of shares outstanding of the registrant's common stock as of June 27, 2011 was 112,639,905 shares.

SIGNATURE GROUP HOLDINGS, INC. QUARTERLY REPORT ON FORM 10-Q For the Quarterly Period Ended June 30, 2010

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		1 agc
PART I <u>– FINANCIAL INFORMATION</u>	1	
Item 1. Financial Statements	1	
Consolidated Balance Sheets	1	
Consolidated Statements of Operations	2	
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity	3	
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows	4	
Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	30	
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risks	45	
Item 4. Controls and Procedures	45	
PART II <u>– OTHER INFORMATIO</u> N	47	
Item 1. <u>Legal Proceedings</u>	47	
Item 1A. Risk Factors	47	
Item 2. <u>Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds</u>	50	
Item 3. <u>Defaults Upon Senior Securities</u>	50	
Item 4. Reserved	50	
Item 5. Other Information	51	
Item 6. Exhibits	51	
-i-		

Table of Contents

EXPLANATORY NOTE

Signature Group Holdings, Inc. ("Signature," formerly Fremont General Corporation ("Fremont"), or "Company", "we," "us" ("our") is filing this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three and six months ended June 30, 2010 (the "Form 10-Q") as part of its efforts to become current in its filing obligations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). This Form 10-Q is being filed contemporaneously with the Company's Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarterly periods ended March 31, 2010, and September 30, 2010, and the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, which have not been previously filed.

On June 18, 2008 (the "Petition Date"), Fremont filed a voluntary petition for relief under Chapter 11 of Title 11 of the U.S. Code (the "Bankruptcy Code") in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Central District of California, Santa Ana Division (the "Bankruptcy Court"). Prior to filing for bankruptcy protection, Fremont was not current in its annual and quarterly periodic reporting requirements under Section 13 of the Exchange Act and did not file its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 nor its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2008. While under the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court, Fremont did not file subsequent Annual Reports on Form 10-K for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2008 and 2009, nor its Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarterly periods ended June 30, 2008, September 30, 2008, March 31, 2009, June 30, 2009, September 30, 2009 and March 31, 2010 (collectively, the "Prior Delinquent Filings").

Fremont emerged from bankruptcy on June 11, 2010 and our new management team and Board of Directors immediately set upon a corporate initiative to return the Company to compliance with its Exchange Act reporting obligations. With a focus on preparing the Prior Delinquent Filings, the Company was not able to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 as well as its Quarterly Reports for the quarterly periods ended June 30, 2010; September 30, 2010; and March 31, 2011.

On May 17, 2011, Signature filed a Comprehensive Annual Report on Form 10-K (the "Comprehensive Form 10-K") that included, in one comprehensive filing, business and financial information for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007; selected, unaudited quarterly financial information of the Company for the fiscal years 2009 and 2008, which had not been previously filed with the SEC; as well as certain disclosures of subsequent events pertaining to material events occurring up until the date of filing of the Comprehensive Form 10-K.

For a more complete understanding of the matters involving the Company, this Form 10-Q should be read together with the Comprehensive Form 10-K as well as the Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended March 31, 2010, and September 30, 2010, and the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 that were filed simultaneously with this Form 10-Q.

-ii-

Table of Contents

PART I – FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

Signature Group Holdings, Inc.
Debtor-In-Possession (for the period June 18, 2008 through June 11, 2010)
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Dollars and shares in thousands, except per share amounts) ASSETS	June 30, 2010 (Unaudited)	December 31, 2009
Cash and cash equivalents	\$48,610	\$355,698
Loans held for investment, net	2,018	2,132
Premises and equipment, net	2,557	2,623
Income taxes receivable	24,631	25,160
Other assets	281	3,435
Assets of discontinued operations	79,687	88,132
TOTAL ASSETS	\$157,784	\$477,180
	,	
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY		
LIABILITIES		
Notes payable	\$39,000	\$-
Warrant liability	4,926	-
Liabilities subject to compromise	-	293,366
Other liabilities	9,819	2,015
Liabilities of discontinued operations	13,113	90,652
TOTAL LIABILITIES	66,858	386,033
Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)		
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY		
Preferred stock, \$0.01 par value; 10,000 and 2,000 shares authorized at June 30, 2010		
and December 31, 2009, respectively; none issued or outstanding	-	-
Common stock, \$0.01 par value; 190,000 and 150,000 shares authorized at June 30,		
2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively; 111,880 and 78,380 shares issued and		
outstanding at June 30, 2010 and at December 31, 2009, respectively	1,119	784
Treasury stock	(630)	-
Additional paid-in capital	444,470	423,039
Accumulated deficit	(354,033)	
Deferred compensation	-	(620)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY	90,926	91,147
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY	\$157,784	\$477,180

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents

Signature Group Holdings, Inc.
Debtor-In-Possession (for the period June 18, 2008 through June 11, 2010)
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(Unaudited)

		Three Months Ended June 30,			J		onths Ended June	
(Dollars and shares in thousands, except per share amounts)	2010		2009		2010		2009	
Interest income	\$ 80		\$416		\$ 175		\$791	
Interest expense	1,131		1,154		2,297		2,291	
Net interest expense	(1,051)	(738)	(2,122)	(1,500)
Provision for loan losses	-		-		38		-	
Net interest expense after provision for loan losses	(1,051)	(738)	(2,160)	(1,500)
NON-INTEREST INCOME:								
Change in fair value of warrant liability	179		-		179		-	
Other	-		351		86		351	
Total non-interest income	179		351		265		351	
NON-INTEREST EXPENSE:								
Professional fees	532		186		544		974	
Compensation	414		337		925		649	
Insurance	774		606		1,622		1,208	
Management fee	65		-		65		-	
Other	292		224		599		298	
Total non-interest expense	2,077		1,353		3,755		3,129	
Loss from continuing operations before reorganization								
items and income taxes	(2,949)	(1,740)	(5,650)	(4,278)
Reorganization items, net	7,130		1,927		10,050		4,154	
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes	(10,079)	(3,667)	(15,700)	(8,432)
Income tax expense	-		-		-		-	
Loss from continuing operations	(10,079)	(3,667)	(15,700)	(8,432)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes	(1,542)	(23,629)	(6,277)	(47,700)
Net loss	\$(11,621)	\$(27,296)	\$(21,977)	\$(56,132)
LOSS PER SHARE:								
Basic and diluted:								
Loss from continuing operations	\$ (0.12		\$(0.05)	\$(0.19		\$(0.11)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes	(0.02)	(0.30)	(0.08)	(0.61)
Net Loss	\$(0.14)	\$(0.35)	\$(0.27)	\$(0.72)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents

Signature Group Holdings, Inc.

Debtor-In-Possession (for the period June 18, 2008 through June 11, 2010)

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity

(Unaudited)

-3-

	Pre	ferred							
	St	tock	Common	Stock					
	Numbe	er	Number						
	of		of			Additional			
(Dollars and shar@	utstand	ing O	utstanding		Treasury	Paid-in	Accumulated I	eferred	
in thousands)	Shares	s Amount	Shares	Amount	Stock	Capital	Deficit Con	npensation	n Total
Balance at									
December 31, 2009) -	\$ -	78,380	\$ 784	\$ -	\$ 423,039	\$ (332,056) \$	(620)	\$91,147
Net loss	-	-	-	-	-	-	(21,977)	-	(21,977)
Issuance of									
common shares to									
TOPrS	-	-	21,000	210	-	16,590	-	-	16,800
Issuance of									
common shares and	1								
warrants	-	-	12,500	125	-	4,831	-	-	4,956
GSOP fair value									
adjustment	-	-	-	-	-	10	-	(10)	-
Reclassification of									
deferred									
compensation to									
treasury stock	-	-	-	-	(630)	-	-	630	-
Balance at June 30),								
2010	-	\$ -	111,880	\$ 1,119	\$ (630)	\$ 444,470	\$ (354,033) \$	-	\$(90,926)

Table of Contents

Signature Group Holdings, Inc.
Debtor-In-Possession (for the period June 18, 2008 through June 11, 2010)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited)

	Six Months Ended		
	June	20,	
(Dollars in thousands)	2010	2009	
Cash flows from operating activities:			
Net loss	\$ (21,977)	\$(56,132)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:			
Loss from discontinued operations	6,277	47,700	
Depreciation and amortization	66	108	
Change in fair value of warrant liability	(179)	-	
Provision for loan losses	38	-	
Gain on extinguishment of debt - TOPrS	(3,530)	-	
Senior debt claims paid	(183,267)	-	
TOPrS claims paid	(45,000)	-	
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:			
Other assets	62	224	
Other liabilities	5,128	(1,699)
Accrued interest payable	-	2,199	
Income taxes receivable	529	(23,454)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities of discontinued operations	(80,975)	51,540	
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities	(322,828)	20,486	
Cash flows from investing activities:			
Principal changes on loans held for investment	76	40	
Proceeds from disposals of premises and equipment	-	12	
Net cash provided by investing activities of discontinued operations	5,571	5,329	
Net cash provided by investing activities	5,647	5,381	
Cash flows from financing activities:			
Issuance of shares and warrants	10,060	-	
Net cash provided by financing activities	10,060	-	
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents	(307,121)	25,867	
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period	356,223	334,684	
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$ 49,102	\$360,551	
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period - continuing operations	48,610	360,026	
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period - discontinued operations	492	525	
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$ 49,102	\$360,551	
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:			
Cash paid for income taxes	\$ 18	\$199	
Cash paid for interest	23,081	-	
Notes payable issued as partial settlement of TOPrS	39,000	-	
Common stock issued as partial settlement of TOPrS	16,800	-	

Transfers of loans to real estate owned

7,711

2,473

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

-4-

Table of Contents

Signature Group Holdings, Inc.
Debtor-In-Possession (for the period June 18, 2008 through June 11, 2010)
Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 — BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS

Signature Group Holdings, Inc. ("Signature" or the "Company"), formerly known as "Fremont General Corporation," ("Fremont") is an externally managed financial services company that operates in two primary business lines: (i) Special Situation Lending and (ii) Strategic Acquisitions. Additionally, Signature maintains and is managing certain assets related to Fremont's former businesses, which include a portfolio of subprime residential real estate mortgages, residential real estate, commercial real estate investments and litigation claims under fidelity insurance bonds Fremont held ("Legacy Assets"). The Legacy Assets are being managed to maximize cash recoveries and value for Signature's shareholders and will be redeployed into its long term business strategy over time.

After a nearly two year reorganization process, Fremont emerged from bankruptcy proceedings and filed Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation with the Office of the Secretary of the State for the State of Nevada on June 11, 2010 (the "Effective Date"), which, among other things, changed Fremont's name to Signature Group Holdings, Inc. Previously, on May 25, 2010, the Bankruptcy Court had entered an order, as amended (the "Confirmation Order"), confirming Signature Group Holdings, LLC's Fourth Amended Chapter 11 Plan of Reorganization of Fremont General Corporation, Joined by James McIntyre as Co-Plan Proponent, dated May 11, 2010, as amended (the "Plan").

Since the Effective Date, the business and operations of the Company have been under new management. Signature's business plan and strategic initiatives are based upon the business plan that was included in the Plan, which was confirmed by the Bankruptcy Court and was approved by 69.6% of the Company's then outstanding common shares, 88.7% of its then outstanding 9% Trust Originated Preferred Securities (the "TOPrS"), and a majority of all other impaired creditor classes. With the exception of the management of the Legacy Assets, the Company has no plans to operate in the banking or consumer mortgage lending businesses that Fremont and its subsidiary, Fremont Investment and Loan ("FIL") previously conducted. Signature remains a financial services company and plans to continue providing financing for various commercial purposes.

Signature's business is primarily funded by the asset base of the reorganized company. On the Effective Date, and pursuant to the Plan, the Company distributed approximately \$280.8 million to Fremont's creditors. Additionally, pursuant to various settlement agreements related to residential loan repurchase liabilities, and with Bankruptcy Court approval, Fremont paid out an additional \$28.3 million during the weeks leading up to the Effective Date. After factoring in these significant distributions, the Company's assets and shareholders' equity at June 30, 2010 were approximately \$157.8 million and \$90.9 million, respectively.

To manage its business affairs, Signature entered into an Interim Investment Management Agreement dated June 11, 2010 ("Interim Management Agreement") with Signature Capital Advisers, LLC ("SCA"), a management company that is owned and managed by experienced professionals with backgrounds and experience in commercial finance, distressed debt acquisition, merchant banking and private equity. SCA's principals and employees, who include Craig Noell, Signature's Chief Executive Officer; Kenneth Grossman, its Executive Vice President; Kyle Ross, its Executive Vice President and interim Chief Financial Officer; David Collett, its Senior Vice President and Treasurer, and Thomas Donatelli, who is an executive of SCA, have an established track record of identifying, structuring, and managing transactions in Signature's targeted business lines.

NOTE 2 — SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING 2010

On May 17, 2011, Signature filed a Comprehensive Annual Report on Form 10-K (the "Comprehensive Form 10-K") that included, in one comprehensive filing, business and financial information for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007; selected, unaudited quarterly financial information of the Company for the fiscal years 2009 and 2008, which had not been previously filed with the SEC; as well as certain disclosures of subsequent events pertaining to material events occurring up until the date of filing of the Comprehensive Form 10-K. For additional information concerning the Company's pre-bankruptcy operations and significant events occurring during its Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings, see Note 2 – Significant Events, Including Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceedings of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements which are included in Item 8 of the Company's Comprehensive Form 10-K.

-5-

Table of Contents

The following information describes the Company's emergence from Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings and the related transactions and events associated with the Company's reorganization, including significant transactions and events subsequent to the Effective Date.

EMERGENCE FROM CHAPTER 11 BANKRUPTCY PROCEEDINGS

On May 25, 2010, the Bankruptcy Court entered the Confirmation Order confirming the Plan, as amended on June 9, 2010, which was binding on all shareholders and creditors of Fremont on the Effective Date. In accordance with the Plan, as authorized by the Confirmation Order, the Company entered into a number of material transactions and events as summarized below.

Consolidations of Fremont Subsidiaries. On the Effective Date, Fremont completed a two step merger transaction in which Fremont General Credit Corporation ("FGCC"), a wholly owned subsidiary of Fremont, merged with and into Fremont (the "FGCC Merger") and then Fremont Reorganizing Company, formerly known as FIL, merged with and into Fremont (the "FRC Merger"), with Fremont as the surviving corporation in both mergers. The FGCC Merger was consummated in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Plan of Merger between Fremont and FGCC dated June 11, 2010 (the "FGCC Merger Plan"), and the FRC Merger was consummated pursuant to the Plan of Merger between Fremont and Fremont Reorganizing Corporation ("FRC") dated June 11, 2010 ("FRC Merger Plan"). Pursuant to the Confirmation Order, the new members of the Board of Directors and shareholders of Fremont, now known as Signature were deemed to approve and adopt both the FGCC Merger Plan and the FRC Merger Plan in accordance with Nevada law. Following the consummation of the FGCC Merger and the FRC Merger on the Effective Date, the assets of FGCC and FRC became the assets of Signature and any existing liabilities of FGCC and FRC, any guarantees by FGCC or FRC of any obligation of Fremont and any joint and several liabilities of FGCC and FRC became obligations of Signature. All of the stock of FGCC and FRC was canceled and all intercompany claims and obligations of Fremont, FGCC and FRC were eliminated.

Signature Common Stock Investment, Warrants Issuance and Registration Rights. Pursuant to the Plan, a series of accredited investors including several of Signature's Executive Officers and members of the Board of Directors: Craig Noell, Kenneth Grossman, John Nickoll and Robert Schwab, as well as former Board of Director members Robert Peiser and Richard Rubin (the "Signature Investors") purchased an aggregate of 12.5 million shares of Signature's common stock for an aggregate of \$10 million in cash pursuant to the terms of subscription agreements between the Company and each of the Signature Investors. In accordance with the Plan, Signature's common stock was issued and sold to the Signature Investors without registration in reliance on the exemption set forth in Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended ("Securities Act").

Additionally, pursuant to the Plan, Signature issued warrants to purchase an aggregate of 15 million shares of Signature's common stock (the "Warrants") to Signature Group Holdings, LLC, an investment management company owned by Craig Noell and Kyle Ross; Kenneth Grossman; and NWRA Capital Partners LLC (collectively, the "Warrant Investors") for an aggregate cash purchase price of \$300,000. The Warrants have a term of 10 years and an exercise price of \$1.03 per share. The Warrants vest 20% on the Effective Date and 20% in annual installments until the Warrants are fully vested on the fourth anniversary of the Effective Date. The \$300,000 purchase price for the Warrants is payable as the Warrants vest. Accordingly, the Warrant Investors paid an aggregate amount of \$60,000 on the Effective Date and will pay \$60,000 in the aggregate on each subsequent vesting installment. The Warrants were issued to the Warrant Investors without registration in reliance on the exemption set forth in Section 4(2) of the Securities Act. The Warrants include customary terms that provide for certain adjustments of the exercise price and the number of shares of common stock to be issued upon exercise of the Warrants in the event of stock splits, stock dividends, pro rata distributions and certain fundamental transactions. In addition, the Warrants are also subject to "full ratchet" anti-dilution protection. This anti-dilution provision provides that if Signature issues new shares of common stock during the term of the Warrants at a per share purchase price of less than the \$1.03 exercise price of the

Warrants, then the exercise price of the Warrants will be automatically reduced to the lowest per share purchase price of any shares of common stock issued during the term of the Warrants. Certain securities issuances by the Company will not trigger this full ratchet protection.

In connection with the issuance and sale of the Signature common stock and the Warrants, Signature, the Signature Investors and the Warrant Investors entered into a registration rights agreement (the "Registration Rights Agreement"). Under the Registration Rights Agreement, Signature is required to use commercially reasonable efforts to register the resale of the shares of common stock issued to the Signature Investors and issuable to the Warrant Investors upon the exercise of Warrants in accordance with the requirements of the Securities Act pursuant to a resale shelf registration statement on Form S-3 or Form S-1, if the Company is not eligible to use Form S-3. Signature intends to file such registration statement as soon as practicable after Signature achieves compliance with all of its Exchange Act reporting obligations. Regardless of when any such registration statement is filed or declared effective, the shares of common stock issued to non-affiliate Signature Investors (but not the shares issuable upon a cash exercise of the Warrants) may be resold immediately and without restriction in reliance upon Rule 144 promulgated under the Securities Act to the extent such safe harbor provision is available.

-6-

Table of Contents

Amended and Restated Articles and Amended and Restated Bylaws. Pursuant to the Plan, Signature adopted its Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, which, among other things, changed the corporation name to Signature Group Holdings, Inc., and its Amended and Restated Bylaws, which were effective as of the Effective Date. The Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation also changed the par value of each share of Signature's common stock from \$1.00 per share to \$0.01 per share. Additionally, the number of authorized shares of Signature's common stock and preferred stock was increased to 190,000,000 and 10,000,000, respectively. In order to preserve certain tax benefits of Signature, Signature's Amended and Restated Bylaws impose certain restrictions on the transfer of Signature's common stock and other equity securities (the "Tax Benefit Preservation Provision"). The Tax Benefit Preservation Provision established a trading restriction on any holders of five percent or more of Signature's common stock in order to reduce the risk that any change in ownership might limit the Company's ability to utilize the NOLs under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Tax Code"). The transfer restrictions apply until the earlier of (i) the repeal of Section 382 of the Tax Code, or any successor statute if Signature's Board determines that the Tax Benefit Provision is no longer necessary to preserve the tax benefits to Signature; (ii) the beginning of a taxable year of Signature in which Signature's Board determines that no tax benefits may be carried forward; or (iii) such other date as the Signature Board shall fix in accordance with the Amended and Restated Bylaws.

The Company's common stock and additional paid-in capital accounts for all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the change in par value of common stock on the Effective Date.

Distributions. Pursuant to the Plan, on the Effective Date, Signature paid claims aggregating approximately \$280.8 million to satisfy Allowed Claims, as defined in the Plan, and which are identified in the table below:

	Distribution
	Amount
Class 1 (Allowed secured claims)	\$8
Class 2 (Priority non-tax)	-
Class 3A (Non-note general unsecured creditors)	49,059
Class 3B (Senior Notes)	186,782
Class 3C (TOPrS)	45,000
Total	\$280,849

In addition to the Allowed Claims identified above, the Company paid an additional \$2.7 million on the Effective Date in professional fees to five firms involved in Fremont's Bankruptcy Case. For additional information, see "Settlement with Professionals Involved in the Fremont Bankruptcy Case" below.

Senior Notes Settlement. On the Effective Date, the holders of the Company's 7.875% Senior Notes due 2009 (the "Senior Notes") were paid \$186.8 million, which amount equaled 100% of the outstanding principal balance plus accrued and unpaid interest as of the Petition Date using the contractual, 7.875% interest rate, plus accrued and unpaid interest from Petition Date through Effective Date using the federal judgment rate ("FJR") of 2.51% plus an additional \$1.5 million (the "Senior Note Settlement"). The additional \$1.5 million payment was made in an attempt to settle potential litigation that was likely to occur over the payment of post petition interest at FJR as opposed to the 7.875% contractual rate. On the Effective Date and subject to the requirements of the Plan, the Senior Notes and the Senior Notes Indenture by and between the trustee and Fremont, dated March 1, 1999, as supplemented or otherwise modified (the "Senior Notes Indenture") were deemed automatically cancelled and discharged.

TOPrS Settlement. On the Effective Date, the TOPrS issued by Fremont General Financing I, a statutory business trust (the "TOPrS Trust") pursuant to the Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust dated March 6, 1996 (the

"Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust"), were extinguished, and TOPrS holders as of the Effective Date became entitled to receive a pro rata share of each of the following amounts as settlement of their claims:

-7-

Table of Contents

- •\$45.0 million in cash (the "Cash Consideration"), subject to charging liens of Wells Fargo Bank, NA, in its capacity as indenture trustee to the TOPrS (the "TOPrS Trustee") described below;
- •\$39.0 million in new notes payable maturing December 31, 2016, bearing 9.0% annual interest, payable quarterly commencing September 30, 2010 (the "Notes Payable") and continuing until the principal thereof is paid or made available for payment; and

• 21 million shares of Signature common stock.

On June 11, 2010, Signature paid the Cash Consideration to the TOPrS Trustee. The TOPrS Trustee distributed \$43.0 million to the TOPrS holders and retained \$2.0 million as a charging lien pending the resolution of its fees in the bankruptcy case. On June 17, 2011, the TOPrS Trustee released \$1.6 million of the charging lien and distributed such amount to the holders of the TOPrS; the remaining \$0.4 million is expected to be distributed no later than September 30, 2011.

On June 25, 2010, Signature issued the 21 million shares of Signature's common stock to the TOPrS holders. The shares were distributed through the Depository Trust Company ("DTC") at the request of the TOPrS Trustee for the convenience of the TOPrS holders, with each holder of TOPrS receiving its pro rata portion of the aggregate shares issued.

On July 16, 2010, Signature issued the Notes Payable. The indenture, dated June 11, 2010 (the "Notes Payable Indenture"), pursuant to which the Notes Payable were issued was qualified under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 under cover of Form T-3 filed with the Commission on June 24, 2010, and became effective on July 15, 2010. Wells Fargo Bank, NA is serving in the capacity as indenture trustee to the Notes Payable ("Notes Payable Trustee") pursuant to the Notes Payable Indenture.

In connection with the TOPrS Settlement, the 9% Junior Subordinated Debentures dated March 6, 1996 (the Junior Subordinated Debentures"), which were issued by Fremont in connection with the TOPrS transaction, the Indenture with respect to the 9% Junior Subordinated Debentures, dated March 6, 1996 (the "TOPrS Indenture"), and the Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust and the TOPrS were each deemed extinguished, cancelled and of no further force or effect, and all obligations of the indenture trustee for the Junior Subordinated Debentures and Signature under any agreements, indentures, or certificates of designation governing the Junior Subordinated Debentures and TOPrS were discharged as of the Effective Date, except that the Junior Subordinated Debentures, TOPrS and the TOPrS Indenture continue in effect until such time that the TOPrS Trustee for the Junior Subordinated Debentures completes all distributions pursuant to the Plan, including the remaining sums due that are currently subject to the charging lien noted above.

As more fully described in Note 16 Subsequent Events, on May 17, 2011, Signature received a notice of default from the Notes Payable Trustee, for not satisfying a covenant to file with the Notes Payable Trustee its periodic reports required to be filed under the Exchange Act with the Commission.

Litigation and Loan Repurchase Settlements. During Fremont's bankruptcy proceedings, a number of settlements related to litigation matters and loan repurchase claims were reached resulting in the Company paying a total of \$118.6 million. Of that amount, \$36.5 million was paid on the Effective Date, which is included in the Class 3A (non-note general unsecured creditors) distributions that are identified in the table above. This amount includes the following matters:

•\$5.0 million paid related to a Stipulation and Agreement with the State of California Insurance Commissioner (the "Commissioner"), as statutory liquidator of Fremont Indemnity Company, an indirect subsidiary of Fremont ("Fremont").

Indemnity") and as statutory conservator of Fremont Life Insurance Company in Conservation, an indirect subsidiary of Fremont ("Life");

- •\$2.0 million paid related to a stipulation and agreement with The Enron Creditors Recovery Corporation ("Enron"), as representatives of Enron's bankruptcy estate;
- •\$22.0 million paid related to a trilateral stipulation and agreement with seven former officers and directors of Fremont and/or Fremont Indemnity and the Commissioner, as statutory liquidator of Fremont Indemnity; and
- •\$7.0 million paid related to a Final Stipulation and Agreement of Payment, Settlement and Release of Certain Claims with The Bank of New York ("BONY").

-8-

Table of Contents

All of these litigation settlements were entered into prior to fiscal year 2010.

From January 1, 2010 through the Effective Date, Fremont entered into three residential loan repurchase settlement agreements. The Company paid approximately \$28.3 million prior to the Effective Date with respect to such repurchase settlements. See Note 14 Discontinued Operations for more information about the Company's repurchase reserve liability.

Unpaid Claims.

Signature did not pay approximately \$17.2 million in claims filed with the Bankruptcy Court as of the Effective Date (the "Unpaid Claims"). Signature has subsequently resolved \$2.9 million in claims related to voluntary withdrawal and paid \$3.0 million to various claimholders during the third quarter of 2010. Signature is actively seeking the voluntary withdrawal of, settlement of, or has plans to object to all other Unpaid Claims in the Bankruptcy Court. Subsequent to the Effective Date, and after the claims bar date, Signature received an additional \$2.7 million in claims. Signature does not believe it has any liability associated with these claims.

Fremont Senior Management and Board of Directors. In connection with Fremont's emergence from bankruptcy proceedings, the senior executive officers of Fremont, including its Interim President and Chief Executive Officer, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice President and General Counsel gave notice of their respective resignations on June 4, 2010. The resignations of Fremont's Interim President and Chief Executive Officer and Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer became effective July 5, 2010. Subsequent to the effective date of his resignation, Fremont's Interim President and Chief Executive Officer continued to provide management services to Signature and was paid a monthly fee of \$50,000 from July through September 2010. Fremont's Executive Vice President and General Counsel delayed effectiveness of his resignation until October 2010 and assumed the roles of interim acting Chief Operating Officer and interim acting Chief Legal Officer of Signature during this interim period. On December 27, 2010, the Company entered into a Separation, Consulting and Mutual Release Agreement with Fremont's Executive Vice President and General Counsel.

With respect to Fremont's Interim President and Chief Executive Officer, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, their resignation notices included identification of potential claims for certain compensation and related benefits pursuant to their respective employment agreements with Fremont and FRC. Signature does not agree with the position taken by the aforementioned executive officers and intends to dispute any such claims if ultimately made against the Company.

In accordance with the Plan and the Confirmation Order, the members of Fremont's Board of Directors each tendered their resignation from the Boards of Fremont, FGCC and/or FRC, and/or their respective subsidiaries, with such resignations effective at 12:01 a.m. on the Effective Date.

New Management Team and Board of Directors. Signature emerged from bankruptcy proceedings with a new Board of Directors and, in conjunction with the resignations of Fremont's Senior Management, a new management team. Pursuant to the Plan and on the Effective Date, Signature increased the size of its Board of Directors to nine (9) members. For additional information on the new management team and changes in the Board of Directors, refer to "D. Recent Developments" of Part I, Item 1 of the Comprehensive Form 10-K.

Management Agreement. As more fully discussed in Note 10 Management Agreement, pursuant to the Plan, Signature entered into the Interim Management Agreement with SCA, certain principals of whom, subsequent to the Effective Date, became affiliated with Signature as members of its executive management team.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO EMERGENCE FROM BANKRUPTCY

Termination of SERP Plans and Receipt of Proceeds. On July 14, 2010, Signature made a demand (the "Demand") on Merrill Lynch Trust Company, FSB as trustee ("Merrill Lynch") to terminate the following retirement plans held by Merrill Lynch and remit the property held thereby to Signature: (i) the Fremont General Corporation 2003 Excess Benefit Plan ("Excess Benefit Plan"); (ii) the Fremont General Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, as amended ("SERP"); and (iii) the Fremont General Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan II, as amended ("SERP II," and together with SERP and Excess Benefit Plan, collectively, the "SERP Plans"). The Demand was made in conjunction with acknowledgement letters received by Signature from all remaining beneficiaries in the SERP Plans waiving any right to or claims against the SERP Plans as result of the treatment and distributions such beneficiaries received in accordance with the distributions made on or about the Effective Date.

-9-

Table of Contents

On July 22, 2010, Signature received funds from Merrill Lynch in the total amount of \$11.7 million, which reflected the net proceeds remaining in the SERP Plans after liquidation (the "Net Proceeds"). All equity interests in Signature held by the SERP Plans were not liquidated but were instead held and placed into a separate account in the name of Signature (such equity interests, the "Remaining Shares"). Both the Net Proceeds and Remaining Shares are assets of Signature. In December 2010, the Board of Directors approved the cancellation and retirement of the Remaining Shares, which reduced the Company's outstanding share count by 91,645 to 112,104,768 as of December 31, 2010.

Receipt of Tax Refund and Withdrawal of IRS Proof of Claim. On October 6, 2010, Signature received \$24.4 million, net of other potential tax liabilities of \$0.4 million, from an IRS tax refund related to the carryback of 2008 NOLs to the taxable year periods 2003, 2004 and 2005. One of the pre-requisites to receiving such refund was completion by the IRS of its examinations of Fremont's consolidated tax returns for the years ended 2006 and 2007, which have been finalized. Shortly after payment of the tax refund, the IRS withdrew its amended proof of claim filed in the Bankruptcy Court noting the claim had been satisfied. Subsequently, in February 2011, the IRS notified the Company that the \$24.8 million refund was subject to review by the Congressional Joint Committee on Taxation (the "Joint Committee") and a request was made for the Company to provide certain information regarding the refund. Although the Company does not have any reason to believe that the Joint Committee will not approve the full amount of the tax refund, there is no assurance that such approval will be given by the Joint Committee.

Substantial Contribution Claims. Pursuant to the Plan, Signature was obligated to pay all Allowed Claims, which included payments of expenses of plan proponents and other parties in interest who the Bankruptcy Court deemed had made substantial contributions in Signature's progress toward reorganization ("Substantial Contribution Payments"). The determination by the Bankruptcy Court relating to such Substantial Contribution Payments was not made until after the Effective Date, so these amounts are separate and apart from the Unpaid Claims, described previously. See Note 16 Subsequent Events for a description of Substantial Contribution Claims paid during the fourth quarter of 2010.

Settlement with Professionals Involved in the Fremont Bankruptcy Case. After the Effective Date, Signature engaged in settlement discussions with seven professional firms involved in the Fremont Bankruptcy Case. Between the Effective Date and December 31, 2010, settlements were reached with four of these firms resulting in Signature paying \$0.9 million in 2010, which was in addition to the \$2.7 million paid to such firms on the Effective Date. In 2011, we have reached settlement with two of the firms whose fees we disputed, resulting in Signature paying \$0.4 million in the second quarter of 2011. The outstanding disputed claims from the last firm that has not settled with Signature as of the date of this filing aggregates approximately \$1.2 million. On May 6, 2011, the Bankruptcy Court took the remaining professional fee dispute under submission and indicated it would issue a written decision within 60 days of the hearing.

NOTE 3 — FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION AND RECENT ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of Signature and its wholly-owned subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP") for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule 8-03 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring adjustments considered necessary for a fair presentation, have been included. The Company evaluates subsequent events through the date of filing with the SEC. Operating results for the three and six months ended June 30, 2010 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2010. These interim period condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Company's audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2009, which are included in the Comprehensive Form 10-K.

All significant inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that materially affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Certain of the accounts that require significant judgment by management include valuation of derivative instruments, loans held for sale, commercial real estate investments and real estate owned; determination of the allowance for loan losses on loans held for investment, litigation accruals and repurchase reserves; impairment of long-lived assets; liabilities subject to compromise and realization of deferred tax assets.

-10-

Table of Contents

Accounting for Reorganizations

The financial statements for the period in which Fremont was in reorganization under Chapter 11 were prepared in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 852 Reorganizations (originally issued as the American Institute of Certified Public Accountant's Statement of Position 90-7, Financial Reporting by Entities in Reorganization Under the Bankruptcy Code), Under ASC 852, the Company must, among other things, (1) identify transactions that are directly associated with the reorganization from those events that occur during the normal course of business, (2) identify pre-petition liabilities subject to compromise from those that are not subject to compromise or are post petition liabilities and (3) apply "fresh-start" accounting rules upon emergence from Chapter 11 reorganization, if applicable. In accordance with ASC 852, the Company did not adopt fresh-start accounting as of the Effective Date. Fresh-start accounting requires that the reporting entity allocate the reorganization value of the company to its assets and liabilities in relation to their fair values upon emergence from Chapter 11 if (i) the value of the assets of the emerging entity immediately before the date of confirmation is less than the total of all post-petition liabilities and allowed claims; and (ii) holders of existing voting shares immediately before confirmation receive less than 50% of the voting shares of the emerging entity. Signature did not qualify for fresh start reporting under ASC 852 as upon emergence from Chapter 11 reorganization, Signature's value of assets was greater than the total of all post-petition liabilities and allowed claims, and the shareholders of Fremont immediately prior to the Effective Date continued to hold more than 50 percent of the stock after the Effective Date.

Liabilities subject to compromise refer to known unsecured liabilities of Fremont incurred prior to the Petition Date. The Bankruptcy Court considers these liabilities to be pre-petition claims. Liabilities subject to compromise exclude pre-petition claims for which Signature has received the Bankruptcy Court's approval to pay, such as claims related to active employees and retirees and claims related to certain critical service vendors. Liabilities subject to compromise may be subsequently adjusted based on various factors, including, but not limited to, negotiations with creditors, actions by the Bankruptcy Court and changes resulting from the normal proof of claims process. Liabilities not subject to compromise include all liabilities incurred after the Petition Date or liabilities that are fully secured by collateral. Liabilities subject to compromise primarily consisted of Senior Notes and Junior Subordinated Debentures among other liabilities created in the normal course of business that existed at the time of the filing and are reported at the expected amount to be allowed by the Bankruptcy Court.

Reorganization items are expense or income items that were incurred or realized by Fremont as a result of the bankruptcy and are presented separately in the consolidated statements of operations and in the condensed combined statement of operations of Fremont. These items include professional fees, trustee fees and other expenses incurred directly related to the bankruptcy filing, gains or losses resulting from activities of the reorganization process, offset by interest income earned on cash accumulated by Fremont while in bankruptcy.

Recent Accounting Standards

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-02 Receivables (Topic 310): A Creditor's Determination of Whether a Restructuring is a Troubled Debt Restructuring ("ASU 2011-02"). ASU 2011-02 provides creditors with additional guidance in determining whether a restructuring constitutes a troubled debt restructuring by concluding that both the following conditions exist (1) a creditor has granted a concession, and (2) the borrower is experiencing financial difficulties. Additionally, ASU 2011-02 ends the FASB's deferral of the additional disclosures about troubled debt restructurings as required by ASU No. 2010-20. ASU 2011-02 is effective for the first interim or annual period beginning on or after June 15, 2011, and is required to be applied retrospectively to the beginning of the annual period of adoption. The Company does not expect that the adoption of ASU 2011-02 will have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In April, 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-03 Transfers and Servicing (Topic 860): Reconsideration of Effective Control for Repurchase Agreements ("ASU 2011-03"). ASU No. 2011-03 affects all entities that enter into agreements to transfer financial assets that both entitle and obligate the transferor to repurchase or redeem the financial assets

before their maturity. The amendments in ASU 2011-03 remove from the assessment of effective control the criterion relating to the transferor's ability to repurchase or redeem financial assets on substantially the agreed terms, even in the event of default by the transferoe. ASU 2011-03 also eliminates the requirement to demonstrate that the transferor possesses adequate collateral to fund substantially all the cost of purchasing replacement financial assets. The guidance is effective for the Company's reporting period ended March 31, 2012. ASU 2011-03 is required to be applied prospectively to transactions or modifications of existing transaction that occur on or after January 1, 2012. The Company does not expect that the adoption of ASU 2011-03 will have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In May 2011 the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04 Fair Value Measurements (Topic 820): Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in US GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") ("ASU 2011-04"). ASU 2011-04 represents the converged guidance of the FASB and the IASB (the "Boards") on fair value measurements. The collective efforts of the Boards and their staffs, reflected in ASU 2011-04, have resulted in common requirements for measuring fair value and for disclosing information about fair value measurements, including a consistent meaning of the term "fair value." The Boards have concluded the common requirements will result in greater comparability of fair value measurements presented and disclosed in financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP and IFRS. The amendments in this ASU are required to be applied prospectively, and are effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The Company does not expect that the adoption of ASU 2011-04 will have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

-11-

Table of Contents

NOTE 4 — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents are held in non-interest bearing deposits in financial institutions and money market funds. As of June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, \$0.9 million and \$1.3 million, respectively, of these deposits were restricted. Restricted cash related to amounts on deposit securing a letter of credit associated with insurance policies. No other cash and cash equivalents were restricted at June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009.

NOTE 5 — NOTES PAYABLE. SENIOR NOTES AND JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

The following table presents Signature's long-term debt:

		December
	June 30,	31,
(Dollars in thousands)	2010	2009
Notes payable (1)	\$39,000	\$-
Senior notes (2)	-	166,530
Junior subordinated debentures (2)	-	103,093
Total	\$39,000	\$269,623

- (1) The Notes Payable were issued on July 16, 2010, but as they were an obligation of the Company pursuant to the TOPrS Settlement under the Plan, Signature accrued such liability as of June 11, 2010.
- (2) Amounts are included in liabilities subject to compromise, within continuing operations, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2009.

Notes Payable

As more fully described in Note 2 – Significant Events in 2010, in June and July 2010, as partial settlement of the TOPrS's bankruptcy claims, the former holders of the TOPrS received \$45 million in cash, subject to charging liens of the Indenture Trustee, 21 million shares of Signature's common stock, and were issued an aggregate of \$39 million in Notes Payable, due December 2016 and bearing interest at a rate of 9% per annum.

The Notes Payable Indenture contains covenants that limit the ability of the Company and certain subsidiaries, subject to certain exceptions and qualifications, to (i) pay dividends or make distributions, repurchase equity securities, or make guarantee payments on the foregoing (ii) make payments on debt securities that rank pari passu or junior to the Notes Payable (iii) effect a change of control of the Company; or (iv) enter into transactions with insiders.

As more fully described in Note 16 Subsequent Events, on May 17, 2011, Signature received a notice of default from the Notes Payable Trustee, for not satisfying a covenant to file with the Notes Payable Trustee its periodic reports required to be filed under the Exchange Act with the SEC.

The TOPrS Settlement resulted in a gain of \$3.5 million, which is included in reorganization items, net in the consolidated statements of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2010.

Interest expense on the Notes Payable was \$0.2 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2010, respectively.

Senior Notes

As more fully described in Note 2 – Significant Events in 2010, on the Effective Date, the Senior Notes were cancelled. The holders of the Senior Notes received the outstanding principal balance of \$166.5 million, \$18.7 million in accrued and unpaid interest plus an additional \$1.5 million. The settlement of the Senior Notes resulted in an

additional \$1.5 million payment to the holders of the Senior Notes. The \$1.5 million is included in reorganization items, net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2010.

-12-

Table of Contents

Interest expense on the Senior Notes, accrued using the federal judgment rate ("FJR") of 2.51%, was \$0.9 million and \$1.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Interest expense on the Senior Notes, accrued using the FJR of 2.51%, was \$2.0 million and \$2.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Total interest payments for the Senior Notes were \$0.9 million and zero for the three months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The difference between contractually required interest payments and actual interest payments made was \$1.7 million and \$3.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Total interest payments for the Senior Notes were \$2.0 million and zero for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The difference between contractually required interest payments and actual interest payments made was \$3.9 million and \$6.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Junior Subordinated Debentures

As more fully described in Note 2 Significant Events in 2010, in June and July 2010, as partial settlement of the TOPrS's bankruptcy claims, the former holders of the TOPrS received \$45 million in cash, subject to charging liens of the Indenture Trustee, 21 million shares of Signature's common stock, and were issued an aggregate of \$39 million in Notes Payable, due December 2016 and bearing interest at a rate of 9% per annum.

Total interest payments for the Junior Subordinated Debentures were zero for the three months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009. The difference between contractually required interest payments and actual interest payments made was \$1.8 million and \$2.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Total interest payments for the Junior Subordinated Debentures were zero for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009. The difference between contractually required interest payments and actual interest payments made was \$4.1 million and \$4.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

NOTE 6 — INCOME TAXES

Deferred income taxes are computed using the liability method in accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC 740 – Income taxes. Under this method, deferred income taxes represent the tax effect of differences between the financial and income tax basis of assets and liabilities

As of December 31, 2009, the Company had estimated federal and state net operating loss ("NOL") carryforwards of approximately \$781.1 million and \$924.3 million, respectively, which expire at various dates between 2016 and 2029. The Company's federal NOLs have a 20-year life and begin to expire in 2026. The Company's state NOLs have either a 10-year or 20-year life and begin to expire in 2016. The Company maintained a full valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets at June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009 as it believed it was more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

At June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the Company accrued the expected tax and interest exposure for tax matters that were either in the process of resolution or had been identified as having the potential for adjustment. The total reserve for these uncertain tax matters was \$0.4 million at June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009.

NOTE 7 — SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Amended and Restated Articles and Amended and Restated Bylaws

Pursuant to the Plan, the Company adopted its Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, which, among other things, changed the corporation name to Signature Group Holdings, Inc., and its Amended and Restated Bylaws, which were effective as of the Effective Date. The Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation also changed the par value of each share of the Company's common stock from \$1.00 per share to \$0.01 per share. Additionally, the number of authorized shares of Company's common stock and preferred stock was increased to 190,000,000 and 10,000,000, respectively. In order to preserve certain tax benefits of the Company, the Company's Amended and Restated Bylaws impose the Tax Benefit Preservation Provision which established a trading restriction on any holders of five percent or more of the Company's common stock in order to reduce the risk that any change in ownership of the Company would jeopardize the NOLs under Section 382 of the Tax Code.

-13-

Table of Contents

The Company's common stock and additional paid-in capital for all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the change in par value of common stock on the Effective Date.

Signature Common Stock Investment and Warrants Issuance

Pursuant to the Plan, the Signature Investors purchased an aggregate of 12.5 million shares of the Company's common stock for an aggregate \$10.0 million in cash pursuant to the terms of subscription agreements between the Company and each of the Signature Investors. Additionally pursuant to the Plan, the Company issued the Warrants to the Warrant Investors for an aggregate cash purchase price of \$0.3 million. The Warrants are exercisable for an aggregate of 15 million shares of the Company's common stock, have a term of 10 years and an exercise price of \$1.03 per share. The Warrants vested 20% on the Effective Date, and will vest 20% in annual installments until the Warrants are fully vested on the fourth anniversary of the Effective Date. The \$0.3 million purchase price for the Warrants is payable as the Warrants vest. Accordingly, the Warrant Investors paid an aggregate amount of \$60,000 on the Effective Date and will pay \$60,000 in aggregate payable on each subsequent vesting installment.

The Warrants include a ratchet anti-dilution protection provisions which provides for a reduction in the exercise price of the Warrants if any common stock (or equivalents) of the Company are issued at a price per share less than the Exercise Price during the term of the Warrants. ASC 815 Derivatives and Hedging provides a scope exception for contracts such as warrants (that otherwise meet the definition of a derivative) issued by an entity that are both (i) indexed to its own stock and (ii) classified in shareholders' equity. When this exception is satisfied, the financial instrument need not be recognized at fair value or (as applicable) the embedded feature need not be bifurcated from the host contract and separately accounted for at fair value. Rather, the warrants are accounted for by the issuer as equity. ASC 815-40 defines "indexed to an entities own stock" and addresses the determination of whether an embedded feature or a freestanding financial instrument that has all the characteristics of a derivative. An instrument would be considered indexed to an entity's own stock if its settlement amount will equal the difference between the fair value of a fixed number of the entity's equity shares and a fixed monetary amount or a fixed amount of a debt instrument issued by the entity. In this case, the settlement amount would not equal the difference between the fair value of a fixed number of the Company's equity shares and a fixed exercise price. The exercise price would be adjusted if the Company (a) sells shares of its common stock for an amount less than \$1.03 per share or (b) issues an equity-linked financial instrument with a strike price below \$1.03 per share. Consequently, the settlement amount of the Warrants can be affected by future equity offerings undertaken by the Company at the then-current market price of the related shares or the contractual terms of other equity-linked financial instruments issued in a subsequent period. Accordingly, equity treatment is not allowed and the Warrants are required to be classified as a derivative liability and re-measured at fair value at each reporting period. The Company values the Warrants quarterly using a lattice option pricing model. The Company valued the Warrants at \$5.1 million on the issuance date and \$4.9 million at June 30, 2010. The net change in the fair value of the Warrants was \$0.2 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2010, respectively, and is included in non-interest income in the consolidated statements of operations.

As further discussed in Note 16 Subsequent Events, the Company has granted shares of restricted stock to independent (non-management) members of the Board of Directors at prices below the \$1.03 exercise price of the Warrants. As a result of the ratchet anti-dilution protection provisions of the Warrants, these grants of restricted stock resulted in downward adjustments of the exercise price of the Warrants.

The payment of dividends on the Company's common stock, if any, is subject to the debt covenants governing the Notes Payable due 2016 and the discretion of the Board of Directors. The Company did not declare or pay any dividends to shareholders for the six months and twelve months ended June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively.

NOTE 8 — SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Independent Director Compensation Program

In October 2010, the Company's board of directors adopted an independent (non-management) director compensation program, effective June 11, 2010, which provides for annual grants of restricted shares of common stock of the Company on the first business day of each calendar year, which grants had an aggregate annual value of \$75 thousand per independent director. The restricted stock awards shall vest at the end of each year of grant, and are subject to immediate vesting in event of a change in control and certain other limited circumstances.

Awards of restricted stock, if any, are amortized at their grant date fair value. Compensation expense for the restricted stock awards is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period which is generally one year. No grants of restricted shares of common stock had been made under the independent (non-management) director compensation program at June 30, 2010.

As more fully discussed in Note 16 Subsequent Events, beginning in the fourth quarter of 2010 and during the first and second quarters of 2011, the Company granted restricted shares of common stock under the independent (non-management) director compensation program.

-14-

Table of Contents

NOTE 9 — LOSS PER SHARE

Loss per share has been computed based on the weighted-average number of shares outstanding. The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted loss per share for the periods indicated:

	Three Months Ended			onths Ended	
	Ji	une 30,	Ji	une 30,	
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)	2010	2009	2010	2009	
Loss from continuing operations	\$(10,079) \$(3,667) \$(15,700) \$(8,432)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes	(1,542) (23,629) (6,277) (47,700)
Net loss	\$(11,621) \$(27,296) \$(21,977) \$(56,132)
Weighted-average basic and diluted shares outstanding	85,651	78,289	81,990	78,285	
Basic and diluted net loss per share:					
Continuing operations	\$(0.12) \$(0.05) \$(0.19) \$(0.11)
Discontinued operations	(0.02) (0.30) (0.08) (0.61)
Basic and diluted net loss per share	\$(0.14) \$(0.35) \$(0.27) \$(0.72)

NOTE 10 — MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

Pursuant to the Plan, Signature entered into the Interim Management Agreement on June 11, 2010 with SCA, certain principals of whom subsequently became affiliated with Signature as members of its executive management team. Under the Interim Management Agreement, SCA acts as the investment adviser to Signature and manages the assets of Signature, including Signature's legacy assets and operations, subject to the supervision of Signature's Board of Directors. SCA will also arrange for the acquisition of any equity or debt financing by Signature, subject to Board approval.

The Interim Management Agreement was to remain in effect until the earlier of the date Signature and SCA enter into a long-term management agreement or December 31, 2010. The Interim Management Agreement was extended by the board of directors action through December 31, 2011. The Interim Management Agreement may be terminated upon sixty (60) days' written notice (i) by the vote of a majority of the outstanding securities of Signature, (ii) by the vote of Signature's Board or (iii) by SCA. Signature's Board of Directors continues to evaluate the external management structure that is currently in place with SCA, as well as alternative management structures that may be available to Signature.

Under the Interim Management Agreement, SCA receives as compensation for its services \$525,000 per calendar quarter or such other amount based on the determination of the Board and the consent of SCA (the "Management Fee") paid in advance of each quarter, which is intended to cover the commercially reasonable operating expenses to be incurred by SCA in its management of Signature. SCA will refund the portion of the Management Fee that exceeds its actual expenses or apply such excess to the subsequent period, if applicable. Signature will bear all other costs and expenses of its operations and transactions. Management fees, under the Interim Management Agreement, were \$65 thousand for three and six months ended June 30, 2010.

Under the Interim Management Agreement, SCA has agreed to limit the base salaries for each SCA Executive to \$150,000 per annum for such professional's services to Signature from the Effective Date through December 31, 2010 and for each automatic extension thereof. The Signature Board may approve bonuses to the SCA Executives directly or pursuant to Signature's incentive plans as in effect from time to time, if any.

Table of Contents

NOTE 11 — FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FASB ASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. FASB ASC Topic 820 also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

- Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- •Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.
- •Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities include financial instruments whose value is determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as instruments for which the determination of fair value requires significant management judgment or estimation.

Recurring Fair Value Measurements

The following table presents, for each of the levels within the fair value hierarchy, the Company's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis including financial instruments for which the Company elected the fair value option:

(Dollars in thousands) As of June 30, 2010:	Ac	oted Prices in tive Markets (Level 1)	Other Observable Inputs (Level 2)	U	Significant nobservable Inputs (Level 3)]	Total Fair Value
Assets held in trust for deferred							
compensation plans (1)	\$	11,776	\$ -	\$	-	\$	11,776
Warrant liability	\$	-	\$ -	\$	4,926	\$	4,926
As of December 31, 2009:							
Assets held in trust for deferred							
compensation plans (1)	\$	11,792	\$ -	\$	-	\$	11,792
Liabilities held in deferred compensation plans	\$	11,819	\$ -	\$	-	\$	11,819

(1) Assets held in trust for deferred compensation plans include both mutual funds and other investments held in the Company's deferred compensation plans. In conjunction with the reorganization and emergence from bankruptcy, these plans were terminated and allowed claims were paid to beneficiaries on the Effective Date. On July 22, 2010, Signature received funds from Merrill Lynch in the total amount of \$11.7 million, which reflected the net proceeds remaining in the SERP Plans after liquidation (the "Net Proceeds"). All equity interests in Signature held by the SERP Plans were not liquidated but were instead held and placed into a separate account in the name of Signature (such equity interests, the "Remaining Shares"). Both the Net Proceeds and Remaining Shares are assets of Signature. In December 2010, the Board of Directors approved the cancellation and retirement of the

Remaining Shares, which reduced the Company's outstanding share count by 91,645 to 112,104,768 as of December 31, 2010.

-16-

Table of Contents

The following table presents the reconciliation for all assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

(Dollars in thousands) Three Months Ended June 30, 2010:	Beginning Balance	Amounts Realized in Earnings	Transfers In/Out of Level 3	Purchases, Issuances and Settlements	Ending Balance
Warrant liability	\$-	\$(179)	\$-	\$5,105	\$4,926
Three Months Ended June 30, 2009:					
Subordinated mortgage-backed securities:	¢104	ф 1 <i>7</i>	ф	¢ (170	Φ22
Residual interest in securitized loans	\$194	\$17	\$-	\$(179) \$32

The following table presents the reconciliation for all assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

				Purchases,	
		Amounts	Transfers	Issuances	
	Beginning	Realized in	In/Out of	and	Ending
(Dollars in thousands)	Balance	Earnings	Level 3	Settlements	Balance
Six Months Ended June 30, 2010:		_			
Warrant liability	\$-	\$(179)	\$-	\$5,105	\$4,926
Six Months Ended June 30, 2009:					
Subordinated mortgage-backed securities:					
Private issue investment securities	\$92	\$3	\$-	\$(95)	\$-
Residual interest in securitized loans	252	38	-	(258)	32
	\$344	\$41	\$-	\$(353)	\$32

Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurements

From time to time, the Company is required to measure certain assets and liabilities at estimated fair value. These fair value measurements typically result from the application of specific accounting guidance under GAAP and are considered nonrecurring fair value measurements under FASB ASC 820-10. The following table presents financial and non-financial assets and liabilities measured using nonrecurring fair value measurements:

-17-

Table of Contents

(Dollars in thousands) As of June 30, 2010: Assets:	Quoted Prices in Active Markets (Level 1)	Significant Other Observable Inputs (Level 2)	Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)	Total Fair Value
Real estate owned, net (1)	\$-	\$-	\$ 2,886	\$2,886
Loans held for sale, net	-	-	44,878	44,878
	\$-	\$-	\$ 47,764	\$47,764
Liabilities:				
Discontinued lease liability	\$-	\$-	\$ 2,504	\$2,504
As of December 31, 2009:				
Assets:				
Real estate owned, net (1)	\$-	\$-	\$ 6,253	\$6,253
Loans held for sale, net	-	-	53,409	53,409
Commercial real estate investments (1)	_	-	1,318	1,318
	\$-	\$-	\$ 60,980	\$60,980
Liabilities:				
Discontinued lease liability	\$-	\$-	\$2,471	\$2,471

⁽¹⁾ Amounts represent the Company's real estate owned ("REO") and commercial real estate investments which resulted in gains (losses) on assets and liabilities recorded on a non-recurring basis during the period.

The following table summarizes the total gains (losses) on assets and liabilities recorded on a nonrecurring basis for the periods indicated:

	Three Months Ended June 30,		Six Months Ended June 30,		
(Dollars in thousands)	2010	2009	2010	2009	
Real estate owned, net	\$(826) \$(284) \$(841) \$(984)
Loans held for sale, net	1,734	230	4,228	(2,795)
Discontinued lease liability	(17) (15) (32) (30)
Total	\$891	\$(69) \$3,355	\$(3,809)

-18-

Table of Contents

FASB ASC Topic 825 – Financial Instruments requires disclosure of the estimated fair value of certain financial instruments and the methods and significant assumptions used to estimate such fair values. The following table presents the carrying values and fair value estimates of financial instruments as of:

	June 30, 2010		Decembe	er 31, 2009
(Dollars in thousands)	Carrying	Estimated	Carrying	Estimated
	Amount	Fair Value	Amount	Fair Value
ASSETS				
Continuing Operations:				
Cash and cash equivalents	\$48,610	\$48,610	\$355,698	\$355,698
Loans held for investment	2,018	2,018	2,132	2,132
Discontinued Operations:				
Cash and cash equivalents	492	492	525	525
FHLB stock	2,067	2,067	2,146	2,146
Loans held for sale, net	44,878	44,878	53,409	53,409
Commercial real estate investments	8,895	8,895	9,072	9,072
Assets held in trust for deferred compensation plans	11,776	11,776	11,792	11,792
LIABILITIES				
Continuing Operations:				
Notes payable (1)	\$39,000	\$39,000	\$-	\$-
Senior notes	-	-	166,530	166,530
Junior subordinated debentures	-	-	103,093	77,320
Warrant liability	4,926	4,926	-	-
Discontinued Operations:				
Liabilities of deferred compensation plans	-	-	11,819	11,819

⁽¹⁾ The Notes Payable were issued on July 16, 2010, but as they were an obligation of the Company pursuant to the TOPrS Settlement under the Plan, Signature accrued such liability as of June 11, 2010.

The Company used the following methods and assumptions to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument at the periods indicated:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investment instruments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Loans held for investment, net

Loans held for investment, consisting of commercial real estate, is comprised of loans with variable interest rates that approximate market interest rates. The fair value of loans held for investment, net considers estimated credit losses associated with the portfolio.

FHLB stock

FHLB stock is recorded at cost. Ownership of these securities is restricted to member banks and the securities do not have a readily determinable market value. Purchases and sales of these securities are at par value with the issuer. The fair value of investments in FHLB stock is equal to the carrying amount. FIL was a former member of the FHLB of San Francisco and its remaining investment in FHLB stock has not been redeemed.

Loans held for sale, net

The fair value of loans held for sale, net is based on several factors, including current bids and market indications for similar assets, recent sales, discounted cash flow analysis, estimated values of underlying collateral and actual loss severities experience in portfolios backed by similar assets.

-19-

Table of Contents

Commercial real estate investments

The fair value of commercial real estate investments is based on various factors including current bids and market indications of similar assets, recent sales and discounted cash flow analysis.

Assets held in trust for deferred compensation plans

Assets held in trust for deferred compensation plans include investments in money market and mutual funds. The fair value of these assets is based upon prices obtained from independent asset pricing services based on active markets.

Notes payable

The fair value of Notes Payable is based on quoted market prices.

Senior notes

At December 31, 2009, an active market did not exist for the Senior Notes and fair value was determined, based on the ultimate redemption amounts.

Junior subordinated debentures

The fair value of Junior Subordinated Debentures is based on quoted market prices of the related TOPrS.

Liabilities of deferred compensation plans

The fair value of liabilities of deferred compensation plans are based on the fair value of the underlying investments in money market, mutual funds and common stock of the Company. The fair value is based upon quoted prices in active markets.

Warrant liability

The fair value of the warrant liability is based on a lattice option pricing model that utilizes various assumptions, including expected term, volatility, risk-free interest rate, share issuance frequency and exercise price.

NOTE 12 — OPERATIONS BY REPORTABLE SEGMENT

The following tables present the operating results and other key financial measures for the Company's operating segments for the periods indicated:

	Three Months Ended June 30, 2010				Three Months Ended June 30, 2009							
(Dollars in thousands)	Continuing		Discontinued		Total		Continuing		Discontinue		Total	
Interest income	\$80		\$ 1,055		\$1,135		\$416		\$ 1,617		\$2,033	
Interest expense	1,131		-		1,131		1,154		-		1,154	
Net interest (expense) income	(1,051)	1,055		4		(738)	1,617		879	
Proivision for loan losses	-		-		-		-		-		-	
Non-interest income	179		1,205		1,384		351		(85)	266	
Non-interest expense	2,077		3,686		5,763		1,353		48,493		49,846	
Loss from continuing												
operations before												
reorganization items, net and												
income taxes	(2,949)	(1,426)	(4,375)	(1,740)	(46,961)	(48,701)
Reorganization items, net	7,130		116		7,246		1,927		187		2,114	
Loss before income taxes	(10,079)	(1,542)	(11,621)	(3,667)	(47,148)	(50,815)
Income tax expense	-		-		-		-		(23,519)	(23,519)
Net loss	\$(10,079)	\$ (1,542)	\$(11,621)	\$(3,667)	\$ (23,629)	\$(27,296)

Table of Contents

	Six Months Ended June 30, 2010				Six Months Ended June 30, 2009							
(Dollars in thousands)	Continuing		Discontinue		Total		Continuin	σ	Discontinue		Total	
Interest income	\$ 175		\$ 2,286		\$ 2,461		\$791	5	\$ 3,364	,u	\$4,155	
Interest expense	2,297		-		2,297		2,291		-		2,291	
Net interest (expense) income	(2,122)	2,286		164		(1,500)	3,364		1,864	
Proivision for loan losses	38		-		38		-		-		-	
Non-interest income	265		3,458		3,723		351		(3,467)	(3,116)
Non-interest expense	3,755		11,477		15,232		3,129		70,619		73,748	
Loss from continuing												
operations before												
reorganization items, net and												
income taxes	(5,650)	(5,733)	(11,383)	(4,278)	(70,722)	(75,000)
Reorganization items, net	(10,050)	394		10,444		4,154		497		4,651	
Loss before income taxes	(15,700)	(6,127)	(21,827)	(8,432)	(71,219)	(79,651)
Income tax expense	-		150		150		-		(23,519)	(23,519)
Net loss	\$(15,700)	\$ (6,277)	\$21,977		\$(8,432)	\$ (47,700)	\$(56,132)
						(Continuing		Discontinue	d		
(Dollars in thousands)						(Operations		Operations		Total	
Segment assets:									_			
At June 30, 2010						\$	78,097		\$ 79,687		\$157,784	
At December 31, 2009							389,048		88,132		477,180	
Segment liabilities:												
At June 30, 2010						\$	553,745		\$ 13,113		\$66,858	
At December 31, 2009							295,381		90,652		386,033	

NOTE 13 — DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Liabilities Subject to Compromise

Liabilities subject to compromise refer to known unsecured liabilities of Fremont incurred prior to the Petition Date. The Bankruptcy Court considers these liabilities to be pre-petition claims. Liabilities subject to compromise exclude pre-petition claims for which the Company has received the Bankruptcy Court's approval to pay, such as claims related to active employees and retirees and claims related to certain critical service vendors. Liabilities subject to compromise may be subsequently adjusted based on various factors, including, but not limited to, negotiations with creditors, actions by the Bankruptcy Court and changes resulting from the normal proof of claims process.

The following table summarizes the components of liabilities subject to compromise, within continuing operations, included in the consolidated balance sheets as of:

		December
	June 30,	31,
(Dollars in thousands)	2010	2009
Senior notes	\$-	\$166,530
Junior subordinated debentures	-	103,093
Accrued interest payable	-	21,067
Other	-	2,676

\$-

\$293,366

-21-

Table of Contents

Liabilities subject to compromise, within discontinued operations, totaled zero and \$37.7 million as of June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively. Refer to Note 14 Discontinued Operations for additional information on liabilities subject to compromise within discontinued operations.

Included in other liabilities at June 30, 2010 and liabilities subject to comprise at December 31, 2009 is \$2.5 million in occupancy-related liabilities associated with the relocation of Fremont's corporate headquarters. The following table presents the changes in the Company's restructuring liability for the periods indicated:

	Three	
	Months	Six Months
	Ended	Ended
	June 30,	June 30,
(Dollars in thousands)	2010	2010
Beginning balance	\$2,487	\$2,471
Accruals	17	33
Payments	-	-
Ending balance	\$2,504	\$2,504

Reorganization Items, Net

Expenses directly attributable to the Bankruptcy Case, including, but not limited to, professional fees and similar types of expenses incurred directly related to the bankruptcy filings, gains and losses resulting from activities of the reorganization process and interest income earned on cash accumulated by the Company while in bankruptcy, are presented separately from other operating expenses in the consolidated statements of operations as reorganization items, net. Reorganization items, net, within continuing operations, consisted of the following for the periods indicated:

		onths Ended ne 30,		onths Ended ine 30,
(Dollars in thousands)	2010	2009	2010	2009
Legal and professional fees	\$9,160	\$2,211	\$12,130	\$4,669
Senior Notes settlement (1)	1,500	-	1,500	-
Interest income	-	(284) (50) (515)
Gain on extinguishment of debt (2)	(3,530) -	(3,530) -
	\$7,130	\$1,927	\$10,050	\$4,154

- (1)On the Effective Date, the Senior Notes were cancelled, and the holders of the Senior Notes received the outstanding principal balance of \$166.5 million, \$18.7 million in accrued and unpaid interest, plus an additional \$1.5 million.
- (2) On the Effective Date, as partial settlement of the TOPrS' bankruptcy claims, the former holders of the Junior Subordinated Debentures received \$45 million in cash, subject to charging liens of the Indenture Trustee, 21 million shares of the Company's common stock, and were issued an aggregate of \$39 million of Notes Payable. As a result of this settlement, the Company recognized a \$3.5 million gain based on the difference between the carrying amount of the TOPrS and settlement amounts.

Reorganization items, net, within discontinued operations, totaled \$0.1 million and \$0.4 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2010, respectively. Reorganization items, net, within discontinued operations, totaled \$0.2 million and \$0.5 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2009, respectively. Refer to Note 14 Discontinued Operations for additional information on reorganization items, net within discontinued operations.

NOTE 14 — DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The following tables present the assets and liabilities and financial results of the components of the Company designated as discontinued operations as of and for the periods indicated:

-22-

Table of Contents

Assets and Liabilities of Discontinued Operations

(Debtor-In-Possession for the period June 18, 2008 through June 11, 2010)	June 30,	December 31,
(Dollars in thousands)	2010	2009
Cash and cash equivalents	\$492	\$ 525
FHLB stock	2,067	2,146
Loans held for sale, net	44,878	53,409
Commercial real estate investments	8,895	9,072
Accrued interest receivable	437	528
Real estate owned, net	9,220	7,037
Premises and equipment, net	1,043	1,410
Asset held in trust for deferred compensation plans	11,776	11,792
Other assets	879	2,213
Total assets of discontinued operations	\$79,687	\$ 88,132
Repurchase reserve	\$8,873	\$ 37,200
Accounts payable and accrued expenses	3,342	2,967
Liabilities of deferred compensation plans	-	11,819
Liabilities subject to compromise	-	37,732
Other	898	934
Total liabilities of discontinued operations	\$13,113	\$ 90,652

Statement of Operations of Discontinued Operations

(Debtor-In-Possession for the Period June 18, 2008 through								
June 11, 2010)	Three 1	Mon	ths Ended		Six M	onth	ns Ended	
	June 30, Jun			une 30,				
(Dollars in thousands)	2010		2009		2010		2009	
Interest income	\$1,055		\$1,617		\$2,286		\$3,364	
NON-INTEREST INCOME:								
Gain (loss) on loans held for sale	2,238		(247)	4,463		(3,228)
Loss on commercial real estate investments	(23)	(12)	39		(56)
Loss on real estate owned, net	(1,414)	(151)	(1,526)	(890)
Other	404		325		560		707	
Total non-interest income	1,205		(85)	3,458		(3,467)
NON-INTEREST EXPENSE:								
Compensation	1,409		2,835		3,122		6,426	
Professional fees	(245)	(2,256)	2,489		2,332	
Insurance	1,753		2,234		3,497		4,483	
Litigation	250		38,750		1,282		47,750	
Restructuring charges	-		4,309		-		4,309	
Other	519		2,621		1,087		5,319	
Total non-interest expense	3,686		48,493		11,477		70,619	
Loss from discontinued operations before reorganization								
items and income taxes	(1,426)	(46,961)	(5,733)	(70,722)
Reorganization items, net	116		187		394		497	
Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes	(1,542)	(47,148)	(6,127)	(71,219)

Income tax (benefit) expense	-	(23,519) 150	(23,519)
Loss from discontinued operations	\$(1,542) \$(23,629) \$(6,277) \$(47,700)
-23-					

Table of Contents

Loans held for sale, net

Loans held for sale, net are comprised of subprime residential real estate loans and are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or estimated fair value. Estimated fair values are based on several factors, including current bids and market indications for similar assets, recent sales, discounted cash flow analysis, estimated values of underlying collateral and actual loss severities experience in portfolios backed by similar assets.

The following tables detail the residential real estate loans held for sale:

(Dollars in thousands)	June 30, 2010	December 31, 2009
Unpaid principal balance	\$117,946	\$140,625
Net deferred direct origination costs	291	445
	118,237	141,070
Valuation allowance	(73,359) (87,661)
Loans held for sale, net	\$44,878	\$53,409
Loans held for sale on non-accrual status	\$56,252	\$67,304

At June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, non-accrual residential real estate loans as a percentage of outstanding unpaid principal balances were 47% and 48%, respectively.

A valuation allowance is maintained based upon the Company's estimate of inherent valuation deficiencies in the residential real estate loans held for sale portfolio to adjust the loans to lower of cost or fair value. Provisions for the valuation allowance are charged against gain (loss) on loans held for sale in the condensed statements of operations of discontinued operations. Activity in the valuation allowance is summarized in the following table for the periods indicated:

	Six Months	Year Ended
		December
	June 30,	31,
(Dollars in thousands)	2010	2009
Beginning balance	\$87,661	\$112,899
Recovery of provision	(4,228)	(8,582)
Dispositions and charge-offs	(10,074)	(16,656)
Ending balance	\$73,359	\$87,661

Commercial real estate investments

Commercial real estate investments consisted of the following:

		December
	June 30,	31,
(Dollars in thousands)	2010	2009
Loans	\$1,018	\$1,018
Investment in partnerships	7,877	8,054
Commercial real estate investments	\$8,895	\$9,072

Table of Contents

Real estate owned, net

REO consists of property acquired through or in lieu of foreclosure on loans secured by real estate. REO is reported in the financial statements at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value. REO consisted of the following:

		December
	June 30,	31,
(Dollars in thousands)	2010	2009
Real estate owned	\$10,708	\$8,454
Valuation allowance	(1,488) (1,417)
Real estate owned, net	\$9,220	\$7,037

The following table summarizes the activity in REO for the periods indicated:

	Six Months	Year Ended December
	June 30,	31,
(Dollars in thousands)	2010	2009
Real estate owned:		
Beginning balance	\$8,454	\$4,234
Additions	7,713	10,509
Disposals	(5,459) (6,289)
Ending balance	\$10,708	\$8,454
Valuation allowance:		
Beginning balance	\$1,417	\$1,905
Provision for losses	841	1,857
Disposals	(770) (2,345)
Ending balance	1,488	1,417
Real estate owned, net	\$9,220	\$7,037

Losses on real estate owned were \$1.4 million and \$0.2 million during the three months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively; and were \$1.5 million and \$0.9 million during the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Assets held in trust for deferred compensation plans and liabilities of deferred compensation plans

Deferred compensation plans at Fremont included the Excess Benefit Plan, SERP, and SERP II which were deferred
compensation plans designed to provide certain employees the ability to receive benefits that would be otherwise lost
under Fremont's qualified retirement plans due to statutory or other limits on salary deferral and matching
contributions. Assets held in the Excess Benefit Plan, SERP and SERP II include both mutual funds and other
investments.

On or about the Effective Date, the Company made distributions to the beneficiaries of the Excess Benefit Plan, SERP and SERP II. Subsequent to the distributions to the beneficiaries, the Company made a demand on the trustee to terminate the deferred compensation plans and received funds from the trustee in the total amount of \$11.7 million, which reflected the net proceeds remaining in the deferred compensation plans after liquidation of the assets. All equity interests in the Company held by the deferred compensation plans were not liquidated but were instead held and placed into a separate account in the name of the Company. In December 2010, the Board of Directors approved the cancellation and retirement of such equity interests.

Repurchase reserves

In prior years, as loans held for sale were sold, the Company made customary standard industry representations and warranties about the loans. The Company may have to subsequently repurchase certain loans due to material defects that occurred in the origination of the loans. The Company maintains a repurchase reserve for the estimated losses expected to be realized when the repurchased loans are sold. In preparing its estimate for repurchase reserves, which includes both known and unknown claims, management considers the loan products, vintage, aging of repurchase claims, previous settlements with investors and actual loss experience. Provisions for the repurchase reserve are charged against gain (loss) on loans held for sale in the condensed statement of operations of discontinued operations.

-25-

Table of Contents

During the three months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, the Company settled \$28.3 million and \$1.0 million, respectively, in outstanding repurchase claims. During the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, the Company settled \$28.3 million and \$1.5 million, respectively, in outstanding repurchase claims.

The following table summarizes the activity in the repurchase reserve for the periods indicated:

	Six Months	Year Ended
	Ended June	December
	30,	31,
(Dollars in thousands)	2010	2009
Beginning balance	\$37,200	\$53,013
Provision (reduction) for repurchases	(28,327)	(22,467)
Charge-offs Charge-offs	-	(1,525)
Recoveries	-	8,179
Ending balance	\$8,873	\$37,200

Liabilities subject to compromise

Liabilities subject to compromise consisted primarily of \$2.0 million and \$37.4 million in litigation reserves associated with negotiating the settlement of cases involving the Company's former insurance and lending operations at June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively.

Reorganization items, net

Reorganization items, net, consisting of professional fees, totaled \$0.1 million and \$0.4 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2010.

Reorganization items, net, consisting of professional fees, totaled \$0.2 million and \$0.5 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2009.

Income taxes

Income tax expense (benefit) totaled zero and (\$23.5) million for the three months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Income tax expense (benefit) totaled \$0.2 million and (\$23.5) million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Income tax expense for the six months ended June 30, 2010 related to required minimum state taxes to be paid by the Company. Income tax benefit for the six months ended June 30, 2009 primarily related to approximately \$23.8 million in reversals of tax accruals related to the resolution of certain tax matters previously accrued.

NOTE 15 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Retention and termination benefits

FRC instituted a retention program with its full time employees in September 2008 in order to compensate employees for the uncertainty of their employment situation in light of Fremont's bankruptcy filing. Under such program, employees were paid a "retention bonus" equal to 20% or 40% of their regular monthly base salary for each full month worked. This retention program was in effect at June 30, 2010.

Legal actions

The Company is a defendant in a number of legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. Litigation is often unpredictable and the actual results of litigation cannot be determined with certainty, and therefore the ultimate resolution of a matter and the possible range of loss associated with certain potential outcomes cannot be established with confidence. Based on the Company's current understanding of these pending legal proceedings, management does not believe that judgments or settlements arising from pending or threatened legal matters, individually or in the aggregate, would have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position, operating results or cash flows of the Company. For additional information on the outstanding legal matters the Company is involved in, refer to Item 3. Legal Proceedings in the Comprehensive Form 10-K.

-26-

Table of Contents

The following legal matter had a development during the quarter ended June 30, 2010.

ERISA Class Action. From April through June of 2007, six complaints seeking class certification were filed in the United States District Court for the Central District of California against Fremont and various officers, directors and employees by participants in Fremont's Investment Incentive Plan, 401(k) and Employee Stock Ownership Plan (collectively "the Plans") alleging violations of ERISA in connection with Fremont stock held by the Plans. The six complaints were consolidated in a single proceeding. On April 15, 2010, the Court granted the Order for Class Certification under Rule 23(b)(3). On March 22, 2011, Signature entered into a settlement stipulation whereby Signature's insurance carriers will pay \$21.0 million to settle the claims of the certified class. On April 25, 2011, the Court granted preliminary approval of the settlement stipulation. The settlement stipulation requires final approval which could take several months before the Court makes a final determination.

The following legal matters occurred subsequent to June 30, 2010.

Cambridge Place Investment Management, Inc. v. Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. et al. (Cambridge Matter #1). On July 22, 2010, Cambridge Place Investment Management, Inc. ("Cambridge"), as assignee of its investor clients, filed a lawsuit in the Superior Court in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts against over 50 defendants, including the broker/dealers, underwriters, issuers and depositors of approximately 200 Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities ("RMBS") offerings purchased by clients of Cambridge. Cambridge alleges the defendants violated Massachusetts securities laws through untrue statements and material omissions in the RMBS offering documents. The lawsuit alleges that Cambridge clients invested over \$2 billion in these RMBS offerings resulting in losses in excess of \$1.2 billion. The Complaint names Fremont Mortgage Securities Corporation ("FMSC"), a wholly-owned special purpose subsidiary of Signature, as a depositor of \$8 million in one RMBS offering in 2005. The matter has since been removed to U.S. District Court in Massachusetts. Plaintiff filed a motion to remand the case back to Superior Court in Massachusetts. The Court has not yet issued its final decision on the proper judicial venue. FMSC intends to defend itself vigorously in this matter.

Cambridge Place Investment Management, Inc. v. Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc., et al. (Cambridge Matter #2). On February 11, 2011, Cambridge, as assignee of its investor clients, filed a lawsuit in the Superior Court in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts against over 30 defendants, including the broker/dealers, underwriters, issuers and depositors of approximately 70 RMBS offerings purchased by clients of Cambridge. Cambridge alleges the defendants violated Massachusetts securities laws through untrue statements and material omissions in the RMBS offering documents. The lawsuit alleges that Cambridge clients invested approximately \$825 million in these RMBS offerings resulting in losses exceeding \$260 million. The Complaint names FMSC, as a depositor of \$101.3 million in four RMBS offerings in 2004, 2005 and 2006. The Complaint is pending the outcome of the proper judicial venue dispute in Cambridge Matter #1. FMSC intends to defend itself vigorously in this matter.

Whitesell and Stinson Matters. On November 13, 2007, Thomas Whitesell, the former Senior Vice President of Fremont's CRE group, filed a complaint against Fremont and FIL for violations of various California labor codes, intentional misrepresentation, concealment, negligent misrepresentation, false promises, breach of contract, conversion, breach of fiduciary duty, action for declaratory relief, unjust enrichment – quasi-contractual recovery, gross negligence and action for specific performance (the "Whitesell Action"). The complaint seeks compensation for alleged unpaid cash bonuses and stock plan awards totaling \$3.0 million. On April 20, 2011, a similar action (the "Stinson Action") was brought against Fremont and FIL by former employees Steve Stinson, Brad R. Burton, Sophia Haliotis, Ronald James Claud, Lee Karny and Scott S. Manlin (collectively with Mr. Whitesell, the "Plaintiffs"). Each of the Plaintiffs filed a Proof of Claim in the Bankruptcy Proceeding for an aggregate claim amount of \$3.8 million. Signature intends to defend itself vigorously in these matters.

National Credit Union Administration v. RBS Securities, et al. On June 20, 2011, The National Credit Union Association ("NCUA"), the regulator of federal credit unions, acting as liquidator of U.S. Central Federal Credit Union, filed a lawsuit in the U.S. District Court in Kansas for unspecified damages to be proven at trial against the underwriter, issuers and depositors of 29 RMBS offerings purchased by U.S. Central. NCUA alleges that the defendants violated federal and state securities laws through untrue statements and material omissions in the RMBS offering documents. The lawsuit alleges that U.S. Central invested a total of \$1.7 billion in these RMBS offerings. The Complaint names FMSC, as a depositor of \$50 million in two RMBS offerings in 2006. FMSC has not yet been served with the complaint, but intends to defend itself vigorously in this matter.

The Company is involved in additional disputes as summarized below.

Bankruptcy Professional Fee Disputes. On the Effective Date, Signature disputed a portion of the professional fees sought by seven different firms that were involved during Fremont's bankruptcy proceedings. Between the Effective Date and December 31, 2010, settlements were reached with four of these firms resulting in Signature paying \$0.9 million in 2010, in addition to the \$2.7 million paid to them on the Effective Date. In 2011, Signature reached settlements with two other firms whose fees we disputed, resulting in the payment of \$0.4 million in the second quarter of 2011. The outstanding disputed claims from the last firm that has not settled with Signature as of the date of this filing aggregates approximately \$1.2 million. On May 6, 2011, the Bankruptcy Court took the remaining professional fee dispute under submission and indicated it would issue a written decision within 60 days of the hearing.

-27-

Table of Contents

Unpaid Claims. On the Effective Date, Signature did not pay approximately \$17.2 million in claims filed with the Bankruptcy Court (the "Unpaid Claims"). Signature has subsequently resolved \$2.9 million in claims related to voluntary withdrawal and paid \$3.0 million to various claimholders during the third quarter of 2010. Signature is actively seeking the voluntary withdrawal of, the settlement of, or has plans to object to all other Unpaid Claims in the Bankruptcy Court. Subsequent to the Effective Date, and after the claims bar date, Signature received an additional \$2.7 million in claims. Signature does not believe it has any liability associated with these claims.

NOTE 16 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Termination of SERP Plans and Receipt of Proceeds

On July 14, 2010, Signature made a demand on Merrill Lynch to terminate the SERP Plans held by Merrill Lynch and remit the property held thereby to Signature. The Demand was made in conjunction with acknowledgement letters received by Signature from all remaining beneficiaries in the SERP Plans waiving any right to or claims against the SERP Plans as a result of the treatment and distributions such beneficiaries received in accordance with the distributions made on or about the Effective Date.

On July 22, 2010, Signature received funds from Merrill Lynch in the total amount of \$11.7 million, which reflected the net proceeds remaining in the SERP Plans after liquidation (the "Net Proceeds"). All equity interests in Signature held by the SERP Plans were not liquidated but were instead held and placed into a separate account in the name of Signature (such equity interests, the "Remaining Shares"). Both the Net Proceeds and Remaining Shares are assets of Signature. In December 2010, the Remaining Shares were cancelled and retired by Signature.

Issuance of Notes Payable

On July 16, 2010, Signature issued the Notes Payable. The Notes Payable Indenture, dated June 11, 2010, pursuant to which the Notes Payable were issued was qualified under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 under cover of Form T-3 filed with the Commission on June 24, 2010, and became effective on July 15, 2010. Wells Fargo Bank, NA is serving in the capacity as indenture trustee to the Notes Payable pursuant to the Notes Payable Indenture. The Notes Payable were issued on July 16, 2010, but as they were an obligation of the Company pursuant to the TOPrS Settlement under the Plan, Signature accrued such liability as of June 11, 2010.

Notification of Review of Tax Refund

In February 2011, the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") notified the Company that its \$24.8 million refund related to the carryback of its NOLs from the 2008 year to the taxable year periods 2003, 2004, and 2005 was subject to review by the Congressional Joint Committee on Taxation (the "Joint Committee") and a request was made for the Company to provide certain information regarding the refund. Signature previously received \$24.4 million, net of other potential tax liabilities of \$0.4 million, on October 6, 2010. One of the pre-requisites to receiving such refund was completion by the IRS of its examination of Fremont's consolidated tax returns for the years ended 2006 and 2007, which were finalized. Shortly after payment of the tax refund, the IRS withdrew its amended proof of claim filed in the Bankruptcy Court noting the claim had been satisfied.

Substantial Contribution Claims

Pursuant to the Plan, Signature was obligated to pay all Allowed Claims, which included payments of expenses of plan proponents and other parties in interest who the Bankruptcy Court deemed had made substantial contributions in Signature's progress toward reorganization. The determination by the Bankruptcy Court relating to such Substantial Contribution Payments was not made until after the Effective Date, so these amounts are separate and apart from the Unpaid Claims described previously. In the fourth quarter of 2010, Signature paid a total of \$4.2 million in Substantial Contribution Payments, which represents the full amount of the Substantial Contribution Claims. Included in the \$4.2 million was \$3.8 million in administrative expense claim payments to affiliates of the Company, including \$2.0 million to Signature Group Holdings, LLC, a management company controlled by two of our senior executives;

\$1.6 million to New World Realty Advisors, a partnership that one of our senior executives had an equity interest in; and \$0.2 million to Jim McIntyre, our largest shareholder and a co-sponsor of the Plan.

-28-

Table of Contents

Settlement with Professionals involved in the Fremont Bankruptcy Case

After the Effective Date, Signature engaged in settlement discussions with seven professional firms involved in the Fremont bankruptcy case. Between the Effective Date and December 31, 2010, settlements were reached with four of these firms resulting in Signature paying \$0.9 million in 2010, which was in addition to the \$2.7 million paid to such firms on the Effective Date. In 2011, Signature reached settlement with two of the firms whose fees were disputed, resulting in Signature paying \$0.4 million in the second quarter of 2011. The outstanding disputed claims from the last firm that has not settled with Signature as of the date of this filing aggregates approximately \$1.2 million. On May 6, 2011, the Bankruptcy Court took the remaining professional fee dispute under submission and indicated it would issue a written decision within 60 days of the hearing.

Changes in Senior Management and the Board of Directors

On March 21, 2011, the Company appointed David Collett as a Senior Vice President and its Treasurer. During 2011, the composition of the Signature Board of Directors has changed with the resignations of four members and the appointment of three new members to fill vacancies on the Board of Directors.

Independent Director Compensation Program

In October 2010, Signature's Board of Directors approved an independent (non-management) director compensation program, effective June 11, 2010, as follows:

Each independent (non-management) member of the Board shall receive annual compensation of \$100,000, comprised of \$25,000 in cash, payable in advance in quarterly installments, and \$75,000 in restricted shares of Signature's common stock, issued annually in advance on the first business day of each calendar year. In each case, the per-share value of the restricted stock shall be determined on the basis of the closing price on the date of grant. The restricted stock shall vest at the end of each year of grant. In December 2010, the Board revised the terms of the restricted stock to include a provision whereby such grants are subject to immediate vesting in the event of a change in control, death or disability of a director or in the event a member is not re-elected to the Board or is not nominated for election to the Board by the Company after indicating a willingness to serve.

The initial grant for an aggregate of 316,267 shares of restricted stock occurred on October 27, 2010 and covered the period June 11, 2010 through December 31, 2010. The initial grant had an aggregate grant-date fair value of \$0.3 million. Each independent director received 45,181 shares of restricted stock having a value of \$37,500. The restricted stock relating to this period vested on January 1, 2011.

On January 3, 2011, each of the seven independent members of the Board of Directors was issued 102,739 restricted shares of common stock. These restricted shares shall vest on December 31, 2011, subject to immediate vesting in the event of a change in control or other events. On grant date, the total number of restricted shares of common stock issued was 719,173, which had an aggregate fair value of \$0.5 million.

On April 21, 2011, each of three newly appointed independent members of the Board of Directors was issued 75,640 restricted shares of common stock. These restricted shares shall vest on December 31, 2011, subject to immediate vesting in the event of a change in control or other events. On grant date, the total number of restricted shares of common stock issued was 226,920, which had an aggregate fair value of \$0.2 million. Unvested restricted shares issued to former Board members were forfeited.

Business Combination

On February 18, 2011, Cosmed, Inc. ("Cosmed"), a newly-formed subsidiary of Signature, acquired certain assets and assumed certain of the liabilities of Costru Company, LLC ("Costru") for consideration totaling \$2.7 million. Cosmed, which does business under the trade name CosmedicineTM, manufactures a line of skin care products for women, which is available in retail stores across the country. Signature currently owns 92% of the outstanding common stock

of Cosmed, with the remaining 8% of the outstanding stock being held by the former owners of Costru.

This new entity's financial results will be consolidated into the Company's financial statements and results of operation starting in the first quarter of 2011. The purchase price allocation had not been finalized as of the date of these financial statements as the Company is in the process of completing the valuation of assets acquired and liabilities assumed from Costru.

Purchase of Senior Secured Debt

On February 22, 2011, Signature Credit Partners, Inc., a newly-formed, wholly-owned subsidiary of Signature, purchased \$8.4 million in outstanding balance in defaulted senior secured debt of a manufacturing company that specializes in retail store fixtures and merchandise displays for \$4.3 million. While the senior secured debt is currently in default, it is the Company's intent to restructure the loan relationship.

Reporting Delinquency under the Notes Payable Indenture

On May 17, 2011, Signature received a notice of default from the Notes Payable Trustee for not satisfying a covenant to file with the Notes Payable Trustee its periodic reports required to be filed under the Exchange Act with the Commission. Signature has until August 15, 2011 to cure this default under the Notes Payable Indenture. With the filing of this Quarterly Report and the simultaneous filings of the Company's Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended March 31, 2010, September 30, 2010 and the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010, Signature will have cured the reporting delinquency set forth in the Notes Payable Trustee's notice of default.

-29-

Table of Contents

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT UNDER THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995

Certain statements in this report, including, without limitation, matters discussed under Item 2, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," should be read in conjunction with the financial statements, related notes, and other detailed information included in Signature Group Holdings, Inc.'s ("Signature," formerly Fremont General Corporation ("Fremont"), or "Company", "we," "us" or "our") Comprehensive Annua Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 (the "Comprehensive Form 10-K"). We are including this cautionary statement to make applicable and take advantage of the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Statements that are not historical fact are forward-looking statements. Certain of these forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of words such as "believes," "anticipates," "expects," "intends," "plans," "projects," "estimates," "assumes," "may," "should," "will," or other s expressions. Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other important factors, which could cause actual results, performance or achievements to differ materially from future results, performance or achievements. These forward-looking statements are based on our current beliefs, intentions and expectations. These statements are not guarantees or indicative of future performance. Important assumptions and other important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, those factors, risks and uncertainties described in the Comprehensive Form 10-K under the caption "Risk Factors" and in our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC").

All forward looking statements set forth herein are qualified by these cautionary statements and are made only as of the date hereof. We undertake no obligation to update or revise the information contained herein, including without limitation any forward-looking statements whether as a result of new information, subsequent events or circumstances, or otherwise, unless otherwise required by law.

OVERVIEW

Signature, formerly known as "Fremont General Corporation", is an externally managed financial services company that seeks to become a diversified business enterprise that is intended to generate strong, risk-adjusted return on equity while protecting shareholder capital. We presently operate in two primary business lines: (i) Special Situation Lending and (ii) Strategic Acquisitions. Additionally, we maintain and are managing certain legacy assets related to Fremont's former businesses, which include a portfolio of subprime residential real estate mortgages, residential real estate, commercial real estate investments and litigation claims under fidelity insurance bonds Fremont held ("Legacy Assets"). These Legacy Assets are being managed to maximize cash recoveries and value for our shareholders and will be redeployed into our long term business strategy over time.

After a nearly two year reorganization process, Fremont emerged from bankruptcy proceedings and filed Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation with the Office of the Secretary of the State for the State of Nevada on June 11, 2010 (the "Effective Date"), which, among other things, changed Fremont's name to that of Signature Group Holdings, Inc. Previously, on May 25, 2010, the Bankruptcy Court had entered an order, as amended (the "Confirmation Order"), confirming Signature Group Holdings, LLC's Fourth Amended Chapter 11 Plan of Reorganization of Fremont General Corporation, Joined by James McIntyre as Co-Plan Proponent, dated May 11, 2010, as amended (the "Plan").

During the bankruptcy period, Fremont's operations focused on maximizing the value of its assets, which, included the liquidation and sale of certain assets, minimizing its costs and liabilities through the negotiation and resolution of litigation, loan repurchase claims and other claims. In particular, Fremont managed its remaining residential and commercial loan portfolios, commercial real estate investments and other assets. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, the Company's results of operations include reorganization items which are direct costs

incurred by Fremont operating as a debtor-in-possession during bankruptcy proceedings. These items include professional fees, trustee fees and other expenses incurred directly related to the bankruptcy filing, gains or losses resulting from activities of the reorganization process and interest earned on cash accumulated while in bankruptcy.

Presentation of Continuing Operations and Discontinued Operations. The presentation set forth below in this Management's Discussion and Analysis and in the Company's Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements present the Company's financial condition and results of operations in two separate categories, which are "Continuing Operations" and "Discontinued Operations." The continuing operations present the financial condition and results of operations for the assets, liabilities, businesses and operations that are consistent with Signature's current business strategy. The discontinued operations present the financial condition and results of operations for the assets, liabilities, businesses and operations that were sold or discontinued by Fremont and FIL prior to the Effective Date. See Note 14 Discontinued Operations in the Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for more information about the Company's "Discontinued Operations."

-30-

Table of Contents

Presentation of Financial Information Due to Fremont's Bankruptcy Proceedings. For the fiscal year 2009 and through June 11, 2010, the Company's financial results reflect the impact of filing a voluntary petition for relief under the Bankruptcy Code in June 2008. All liabilities incurred prior to the Petition Date are considered liabilities "subject to compromise", unless they are fully secured by collateral. The liabilities that are "subject to compromise" include the 7.875% Senior Notes due 2009 (the "Senior Notes"), the 9% Junior Subordinated Debentures (the "Junior Subordinated Debentures"), accrued interest payable, income taxes payable and other accounts payable and accrued expenses. These liabilities represent estimates of known or potential pre-petition claims that were resolved or expected to be resolved in connection with the Chapter 11 case. Liabilities of deferred compensation plans for the Fremont General Corporation 2003 Excess Benefit Plan ("Excess Benefit Plan"), the Fremont General Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, as amended ("SERP") and the Fremont General Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan II, as amended ("SERP II," and together with SERP and Excess Benefit Plan, collectively, the "SERP Plans") is not considered a liability subject to compromise as this liability was fully secured by its deferred compensation plan assets.

Material Weakness in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. As of June 30, 2010, the Company's internal control over financial reporting was not effective and it was determined that the material weakness identified as of December 31, 2009 had not been remediated. The Company is currently working to remediate the material weakness in its internal control over financial reporting. See Item 4, "Controls and Procedures" of this Form 10-Q for more information about the Company's assessment of its internal control over financial reporting and the related material weakness, as well as the Company's continuing efforts to remediate such weakness. Notwithstanding the assessment that the Company's internal control over financial reporting was not effective and that there was a material weakness as discussed in Part I, Item 4 of this Form 10-Q, the Company believes that the financial statements contained in this Form 10-Q and discussed in this Management's Discussion and Analysis, fairly and accurately present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows for each of the periods ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 in all material respects.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP"). The Company's accounting policies are fundamental to understanding management's discussion and analysis of results of operations and financial condition. Several of our policies are critical as they require management to make difficult, subjective and complex judgments about matters that are inherently uncertain that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and revenues and expenses included in the consolidated financial statements. Circumstances and events that differ significantly from those underlying the Company's estimates, assumptions and judgments could cause the actual amounts reported to differ significantly from these estimates.

The Company's critical accounting policies include those that address (i) accounting for reorganizations, (ii) discontinued operations, (iii) restructuring charges, (iv) gain (loss) on loans held for sale, (v) fair value measurements, (vi) guarantees (repurchase reserves), (vii) valuation of loans held for sale, (viii) valuation of warrants, (ix) valuation of real estate owned and (x) income taxes. Refer to Part II, Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in the Comprehensive Form 10-K. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and assumptions based upon historical experience and various other factors and circumstances. We believe that our estimates and assumptions are reasonable under the circumstances; however, actual results may differ significantly from these estimates and assumptions, which could have a material impact on the carrying value of assets and liabilities at the balance sheet dates and our results of operations for the reporting periods.

As a result of the issuance of the Warrants, the Company had the following change in its critical accounting policies.

In accordance with FASB ASC 815 – Derivatives and Hedging, financial instruments meeting the definition of a derivative are recorded at fair value, with changes in fair value reported through earnings. In determining whether certain financial instruments meet the definition of a derivative, the Company follows FASB ASC 815-40 - Contracts in Entity's Own Equity. Pursuant to the Plan, Signature issued warrants to purchase an aggregate of 15 million shares of Signature's common stock (the "Warrants") for an aggregate cash purchase price of \$0.3 million. The Warrants have a term of 10 years and an exercise price of \$1.03 per share. The Warrants include a ratchet anti-dilution protection provisions which provides for a reduction in the exercise price of the Warrants if any common stock (or equivalents) of the Company are issued at a price per share less than the Exercise Price during the term of the Warrants. ASC 815 Derivatives and Hedging provides a scope exception for contracts such as warrants (that otherwise meet the definition of a derivative) issued by an entity that are both (i) indexed to its own stock and (ii) classified in shareholders' equity. When this exception is satisfied, the financial instrument need not be recognized at fair value or (as applicable) the embedded feature need not be bifurcated from the host contract and separately accounted for at fair value. Rather, the warrants are accounted for by the issuer as equity. ASC815-40 defines "indexed to an entities own stock" and addresses the determination of whether an embedded feature or a freestanding financial instrument that has all the characteristics of a derivative. An instrument would be considered indexed to an entity's own stock if its settlement amount will equal the difference between the fair value of a fixed number of the entity's equity shares and a fixed monetary amount or a fixed amount of a debt instrument issued by the entity. In this case, the settlement amount would not equal the difference between the fair value of a fixed number of the Company's equity shares and a fixed exercise price. The exercise price would be adjusted if the Company (a) sells shares of its common stock for an amount less than \$1.03 per share or (b) issues an equity-linked financial instrument with a strike price below \$1.03 per share. Consequently, the settlement amount of the Warrants can be affected by future equity offerings undertaken by the Company at the then-current market price of the related shares or the contractual terms of other equity-linked financial instruments issued in a subsequent period. Accordingly, equity treatment is not allowed and the Warrants are required to be classified as a derivative liability and re-measured at fair value at each reporting period. For additional information about the Warrants, see Note 2 Significant Events in 2010 in the Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included Part I, Item 1 of this Form 10-Q.

-31-

Table of Contents

There were no other changes in its critical accounting policies or the Company's estimates and assumptions from those disclosed in the Comprehensive Form 10-K.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Three Months Ended June 30, 2010

The following is a summary of significant operating results for the three months ended June 30, 2010.

Continuing Operations:

- Loss from continuing operations of \$10.1 million compared to \$3.7 million for the comparable 2009 period.
 - Net interest expense of \$1.1 million compared to \$0.7 million for the comparable 2009 period.
 - Non-interest income of \$0.2 million compared to \$0.4 million for the comparable 2009 period.
 - Non-interest expense of \$2.1 million compared to \$1.4 million for the comparable 2009 period.
 - Reorganization items, net of \$7.1 million compared to \$1.9 million for the comparable 2009 period.

Discontinued Operations:

- Loss from discontinued operations of \$1.5 million compared to \$23.6 million for the comparable 2009 period.
- Non-interest income of \$1.2 million as compared to \$(0.1) million for the comparable 2009 period. o Gain (loss) on loans held for sale of \$2.2 million as compared to \$(0.2) million for the comparable 2009 period.
 - o Loss on real estate owned, net of \$1.4 million as compared to \$0.2 for the comparable 2009 period.
 - Non-interest expense of \$3.7 million as compared to \$48.5 million for the comparable 2009 period.
 - o Compensation expense of \$1.4 million as compared to \$2.8 million for the comparable 2009 period.
 - o Recovery of professional fees of \$0.2 million as compared to \$2.3 million for the comparable 2009 period.
 - o Litigation expense of \$0.3 million as compared to \$38.8 million for the comparable 2009 period.
 - o Restructuring charges of zero as compared to \$4.3 million for the comparable period in 2009.
- Income tax expense of zero as compared to an income tax benefit of \$23.5 million for the comparable 2009 period.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2010

The following is a summary of significant operating results for the six months ended June 30, 2010.

Continuing Operations:

- Loss from continuing operations of \$15.7 million as compared to \$8.4 million for the comparable 2009 period.
 - Net interest expense of \$2.1 million as compared to \$1.5 million for the comparable 2009 period.
 - Non-interest expense of \$3.8 million as compared to \$3.1 million for the comparable 2009 period.
 - Reorganization items, net of \$10.1 million as compared to \$4.2 million for the comparable 2009 period.

-32-

Table of Contents

Discontinued Operations:

- •Loss from discontinued operations of \$6.3 million as compared to \$47.7 million for the comparable 2009 period.
- Non-interest income of \$3.5 million as compared to an expense of \$(3.5) million for the comparable 2009 period. Gain (loss) on loans held for sale of \$4.5 million as compared to (\$3.2) million for the comparable 2009 period.
 - Non-interest expense of \$11.5 million as compared to \$70.6 million for the comparable 2009 period. Compensation expense of \$3.1 million as compared to \$6.4 million for the comparable 2009 period. Insurance expense of \$3.5 million as compared to \$4.5 million for the comparable 2009 period. Litigation expense of \$1.3 million as compared to \$47.8 million for the comparable 2009 period. Restructuring charges of zero as compared to \$4.3 million for the comparable 2009 period. Other expense of \$1.1 million as compared to \$5.3 million for the comparable 2009 period.
- •Income tax expense of \$0.2 million as compared to an income tax benefit of \$23.5 million for the comparable 2009 period.

CHANGES IN CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL CONDITION

		December
(Debtor-In-Possession for the Period June 18, 2008 through June 11, 2010)	June 30,	31,
(Dollars in the thousands)	2010	2009
Cash and cash equivalents	\$48,610	\$355,698
Loans held for investment, net	2,018	2,132
Premises and equipment, net	2,557	2,623
Income taxes receivable	24,631	25,160
Other assets	281	3,435
Assets of discontinued operations	79,687	88,132
TOTAL ASSETS	\$157,784	\$477,180
Notes payable	\$39,000	\$-
Warrant liability	4,926	-
Liabilities subject to compromise:	-	293,366
Other liabilities	9,819	2,015
Liabilities of discontinued operations	13,113	90,652
TOTAL LIABILITIES	66,858	386,033
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY	90,926	91,147
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY	\$157,784	\$477,180

June 30, 2010 compared to December 31, 2009

General

Total assets decreased by \$319.4 million or 66.9% to \$157.8 million at June 30, 2010 from \$477.2 million at December 31, 2009, primarily as a result of a \$307.0 million decrease in cash and cash equivalents, a \$3.1 million decrease in other assets and a \$8.6 million decrease in assets of discontinued operations. Total liabilities decreased by \$319.2 million or 82.7% to \$66.9 million at June 30, 2010 from \$386.0 million at December 31, 2009, primarily as a result of a \$293.4 million decrease in liabilities subject to compromise and a \$77.5 million decrease in liabilities of discontinued operations. The decrease in total liabilities was partially offset by an increase in notes payable, warrant liability and other liabilities of \$39.0 million, \$4.9 million and \$7.8 million, respectively.

Total shareholders' equity decreased to \$90.9 million at June 30, 2010 from \$91.1 million at December 31, 2009. The decrease in shareholders' equity is primarily related to the \$22.0 million net loss for the six months ended

June 30, 2010, partially offset by a \$21.8 million increase in shareholders' equity primarily related to a \$16.8 million increase in common stock for the issuance of 21 million shares of Signature common stock to the holders of the 9% Trust Originated Preferred Securities ("TOPrS") in connection with the settlement of the TOPrS claims in our bankruptcy proceedings ("TOPrS Settlement"). Additionally, on the Effective Date, the Company issued and sold 12.5 million shares of Signature common stock to accredited investors ("Signature Investors"), including several of Signature's executive officers and then members of the Board of Directors, for \$10.0 million and the Warrants to purchase an aggregate 15 million shares of Signature common stock for proceeds of \$10.1 million. The issuance of Signature common stock and the Warrants resulted in the Company recording a \$5.0 million increase in shareholders' equity and a warrant liability of \$5.1 million. The net loss for the six months ended June 30, 2010 is discussed in more detail below under "Results of Consolidated Operations." For additional information about the TOPrS Settlement and about the shares of Signature common stock and the Warrants, see Note 2 Significant Events in 2010 in the Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included Part I, Item 1 of this Form 10-Q.

-33-

Table of Contents

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents decreased \$307.0 million to \$48.6 million at June 30, 2010 from \$355.7 million at December 31, 2009. The decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the six months ended June 30, 2010 was primarily attributable to \$280.8 million in distributions to satisfy Allowed Claims, as defined in the Plan, on the Effective Date and \$28.3 million in settlements paid related to repurchase reserve matters during the weeks leading up to the Effective Date. For additional information about the distributions of "Allowed Claims," see "Liquidity and Capital Resources" below and Note 2 Significant Events in 2010 in the Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Form 10-Q. Additionally, cash and cash equivalents decreased as a result of operating costs during the year including reorganization expenses associated with legal and professional costs related to the Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings. The decrease in cash and cash equivalents was partially offset by \$10.1 million in proceeds received from the sale of 12.5 million shares of Signature common stock to the Signature Investors and the issuance of the Warrants on the Effective Date.

Other assets

Other assets decreased to \$0.3 million at June 30, 2010 as compared to \$3.4 million at December 31, 2009. The \$3.1 million decrease is substantially related to the extinguishment of the TOPrS issued by Fremont General Financing I (the "TOPrS Trust") as a result of the TOPrS Settlement. The TOPrS Settlement resulted in the elimination of the Company's \$3.1 million equity investment in the TOPrS Trust at the time the TOPrS were extinguished. For additional information about the TOPrS Settlement, see Note 2 Significant Events in 2010 in the Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Form 10-O.

Notes payable

Notes payable increased to \$39.0 million at June 30, 2010 as compared to zero at December 31, 2009. In conjunction with the TOPrS Settlement, the Junior Subordinated Debentures totaling \$103.1 million were extinguished and the holders of the TOPrS were entitled to receive a pro rata share of (a) \$45.0 million in cash, subject to charging liens of Wells Fargo Bank, NA, in its capacity as indenture trustee to the TOPrS (the "TOPrS Trustee"), (b) \$39.0 million in Notes Payable, and (c) 21 million shares of Signature common stock. The Notes Payable were issued on July 16, 2010, but as they were an obligation of the Company pursuant to the TOPrS Settlement under the Plan, Signature accrued such liability as of June 11, 2010.

The Notes Payable mature in December 2016 and bear interest at 9.0% annually, paid quarterly beginning September 30, 2010. Prior to the Effective Date, the \$103.1 million in Junior Subordinated Debentures was included in "Liabilities Subject to Compromise." For additional information about the Notes Payable, see Note 2 – Significant Events in 2010 and Note 5 – Notes Payable, Senior Notes and Junior Subordinated Debentures in the Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Form 10-Q.

Warrant liability

Warrant liability increased to \$4.9 million at June 30, 2010 as compared to zero at December 31, 2009. Pursuant to the Plan, Signature issued the Warrants to purchase an aggregate of 15 million shares of Signature common stock for an aggregate cash purchase price of \$0.3 million. For additional information about the warrant liability, see Note 7 – Shareholders' Equity in the Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Form 10-Q.

The Warrants include a ratchet anti-dilution protection provision which provides for a reduction in the exercise price of the Warrants if any common stock (or equivalents) of the Company are issued at a price per share less than the Exercise Price during the term of the warrants. The Warrants can also be adjusted due to future equity offerings undertaken by the Company with exercise pricing set at the then-current market price of the related shares or the contractual terms of other equity-linked financial instruments issued in a subsequent period. Accordingly, equity treatment is not allowed and the Warrants are required to be classified as a derivative liability and re-measured at fair

value at each reporting period. The Company valued the Warrants at June 11, 2010 (issuance date) at \$5.1 million and \$4.9 million at June 30, 2010. The \$0.2 million change in fair value between the issuance date and June 30, 2010 is included in non-interest income in the consolidated statements of operations.

Liabilities subject to compromise

Liabilities subject to compromise decreased to zero at June 30, 2010 as compared to \$293.4 million at December 31, 2009. The decrease is primarily related to the Company's emergence from bankruptcy and settlement of claims, pursuant to the Plan on the Effective Date. The claims settled primarily included distributions of \$186.8 million for the Senior Notes, \$45.0 million related to the restructuring of the Junior Subordinated Debentures in connection with the TOPrS Settlement, and \$49.1 million for general unsecured creditors.

-34-

Table of Contents

Liabilities subject to compromise primarily consisted of the Senior Notes, the Junior Subordinated Debentures and other accrued liabilities that existed at the Petition Date. Senior Notes totaled \$166.5 million and had an interest rate of 7.875% per annum with a maturity date in 2009. The Junior Subordinated Debentures totaled \$103.1 million and had an interest of 9.0% per annum with a maturity date in 2026. The Senior Notes were settled and the Junior Subordinated Debentures were restructured as part of the TOPrS Settlement on the Effective Date. For additional information about the claims settled related to the Company's emergence from bankruptcy proceedings, see Note 2 Significant Events in 2010 in the Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Form 10-Q.

Other liabilities

Other liabilities increased to \$9.8 million at June 30, 2010 as compared to \$2.0 million at December 31, 2009. The increase in other liabilities is primarily related to the accrual of legal and professional fees associated with the bankruptcy proceedings.

Assets and liabilities of discontinued operations

Assets of discontinued operations decreased to \$79.6 million at June 30, 2010 as compared to \$88.1 million at December 31, 2009. Liabilities of discontinued operations decreased to \$13.1 million at June 30, 2010 as compared to \$90.7 million at December 31, 2009. See discussion of "Changes in Financial Condition - Discontinued Operations" below.

Changes in Results of Consolidated Operations

The following table presents selected components of the Company's consolidated statements of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009.

(Debtor-In-Possession for the Period June 18, 2008 through	h							
June 11, 2010)	Three Months Ended June 30,		Six Months Ended					
			June 30,			30,		
(Dollars in thousands)	2010		2009		2010		2009	
Interest income	\$ 80		\$416		\$ 175		\$791	
Interest expense	1,131		1,154		2,297		2,291	
Net interest expense	(1,051)	(738)	(2,122)	(1,500)
Provision for loan losses	-		-		38		-	
	(1,051)	(738)	(2,160)	(1,500)
Non-interest income	179		351		265		351	
Non-interest expense	2,077		1,353		3,755		3,129	
Loss from continuing operations before reorganization								
items, net and income taxes	(2,949)	(1,740)	(5,650)	(4,278)
Reorganization items, net	7,130		1,927		10,050		4,154	
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes	(10,079)	(3,667)	(15,700)	(8,432)
Income tax benefit, net	-		-		-		-	
Loss from continning operations	(10,079)	(3,667)	(15,700)	(8,432)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes	(1,542)	(23,629)	(6,277)	(47,700)
Net loss	\$(11,621)	\$(27,296)	\$(21,977)	\$(56,132)

Three months ended June 30, 2010 compared to three months ended June 30, 2009

General

Net loss decreased \$15.7 million to \$11.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to a net loss of \$27.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease in net loss is primarily related to a \$22.1 million decrease in loss from discontinued operations to \$1.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010 partially offset by a \$5.2 million increase in reorganization items, net to \$7.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010.

-35-

Table of Contents

Net interest expense

Net interest expense increased \$0.3 million to \$1.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$0.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009. The increase is primarily related to a \$0.3 million reduction in interest income associated with a declining loans held for investment portfolio due to principal reductions and a decline in yield on cash and cash equivalents as a result of lower market interest rates.

Non-interest expense

Non-interest expense increased \$0.7 million to \$2.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$1.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009. The increase is primarily related to a \$0.3 million increase in professional fees and a \$0.2 million increase in insurance expense.

Reorganization items, net

Reorganization items, net increased \$5.2 million to \$7.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$1.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009. The increase is primarily related to \$9.2 million in professional and legal fees associated with the Company's bankruptcy proceedings and \$1.5 million related to the settlement of the Senior Notes, partially offset by a \$3.5 million gain on extinguishment of the Junior Subordinated Debentures in connection with the TOPrS Settlement during the three months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$2.2 million in professional and legal fees partially offset by \$0.3 million in interest income on cash accumulated in bankruptcy during the three months ended June 30, 2009.

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes decreased \$22.1 million to a loss of \$1.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$23.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease in loss from discontinued operations is primarily related to an increase of \$1.3 million in non-interest income and a \$44.8 million decrease in non-interest expense, partially offset by a \$0.6 million reduction in interest income and a \$23.5 million decrease in income tax benefit. See discussion of "Changes in Results of Operations - Discontinued Operations" below for additional detail.

Six months ended June 30, 2010 compared to six months ended June 30, 2009

General

Net loss decreased \$34.2 million to \$22.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to a net loss of \$56.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease in net loss is primarily related to a \$41.4 million decrease in loss from discontinued operations to \$6.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 partially offset by a \$5.9 million increase in reorganization items, net to \$10.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010.

Net interest expense

Net interest expense increased \$0.6 million to \$2.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$1.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009. The increase is primarily related to a \$0.6 million reduction in interest income associated with a declining loans held for investment portfolio due to principal reductions and a decline in yield on cash and cash equivalents as a result of lower market interest rates.

Non-interest expense

Non-interest expense increased \$0.6 million to \$3.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$3.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009. The increase is primarily related to a \$0.3 million increase in compensation expense, a \$0.4 million increase in insurance expense and a \$0.3 million increase in other expense, partially offset by a \$0.4 million decrease in professional fees.

Reorganization items, net

Reorganization items, net increased \$5.9 million to \$10.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$4.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009. The increase is primarily related to \$12.1 million in professional and legal fees associated with the Company's bankruptcy proceedings and \$1.5 million related to the settlement of the Senior Notes, partially offset by a \$3.5 million gain on extinguishment of the Junior Subordinated Debentures in connection with the TOPrS Settlement during the six months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$4.7 million in professional and legal fees partially offset by \$0.5 million in interest income on cash accumulated in bankruptcy during the six months ended June 30, 2009.

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes decreased \$41.4 million to a loss of \$6.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$47.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease in loss from discontinued operations is primarily related to an increase of \$6.9 million in non-interest income and a \$59.1 million decrease in non-interest expense, partially offset by a \$23.7 million increase income tax expense. See discussion of "Changes in Results of Operations - Discontinued Operations" below for additional detail.

-36-

Table of Contents

CHANGES IN FINANCIAL CONDITION DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The following table presents selected components of the Company's balance sheets for its discontinued operations at June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009.

(Debtor-In-Possession for the period June 18, 2008 through June 11, 2010)	June 30,	December 31,
(Dollars in thousands)	2010	2009
Cash and cash equivalents	\$492	\$ 525
FHLB stock	2,067	2,146
Loans held for sale, net	44,878	53,409
Commercial real estate investments	8,895	9,072
Real estate owned, net	9,220	7,037
Asset held in trust for deferred compensation plans	11,776	11,792
Other assets	2,359	4,151
Total assets of discontinued operations	\$79,687	\$ 88,132
Repurchase reserve	\$8,873	\$ 37,200
Liabilities of deferred compensation plans	-	11,819
Liabilities subject to compromise	-	37,732
Other	4,240	3,901
Total liabilities of discontinued operations	\$13,113	\$ 90,652

June 30, 2010 compared to December 31, 2009

Loans held for sale, net

Loans held for sale, net primarily consist of first lien subprime residential mortgage loans originated by Fremont in periods prior to March 31, 2007. Loans held for sale, net totaled \$44.9 million consisting of \$117.9 million in unpaid principal balance ("UPB"), net of a \$73.4 million valuation allowance at June 30, 2010 as compared to \$53.4 million consisting of \$140.6 million in UPB, net of \$87.7 million in valuation allowance at December 31, 2009. The decrease is primarily related to \$7.7 million in net transfers of loans held for sale to REO as a result of foreclosures and \$6.7 million in borrower pay-offs and principal payments, partially offset by \$4.2 million in reductions to the valuation allowance primarily attributable to borrower loan payoffs and principal payments. There were no loans sold during the six months ended June 30, 2010 and the year ended December 31, 2009.

The valuation allowance decreased \$14.3 million to \$73.4 million at June 30, 2010 from \$87.7 million at December 31, 2009. The decrease in valuation allowance was primarily related to charge-offs related to transfers of loans held for sale to REO at net realizable value and reductions in valuation allowance attributable to borrower pay-offs and principal payments.

As of June 30, 2010, non-accrual residential real estate loans totaled \$56.3 million or 47.7% of UPB as compared to \$67.3 million or 47.9% of UPB at December 31, 2009. The weighted average yield on unpaid principal balance for loans held for sale, net was 3.42% at June 30, 2010 as compared to 4.15% at December 31, 2009.

Commercial real estate investments

Commercial real estate investments primarily consist of FIL's participation in community development projects and similar types of loans and investments which FIL maintained for compliance under the Community Reinvestment Act ("CRA"). Commercial real estate investments are designated as held for sale. Commercial real estate investments, net decreased by \$0.2 million to \$8.9 million at June 30, 2010 from \$9.1 million at December 31, 2009. The decrease was primarily related to \$0.2 million in loan principal payments during the six months ended June 30, 2010.

Table of Contents

Real estate owned, net (REO)

REO includes property acquired through foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure and is recorded at fair value less estimated costs to sell at acquisition date. REO totaled \$9.2 million, net of valuation reserves of \$1.5 million, at June 30, 2010 as compared to \$7.0 million, net of valuation reserves of \$1.4 million, at December 31, 2009. The increase in REO was related to an increase in foreclosure activity and a reduction in valuation reserves, partially offset by sales of REO. Loans held for sale transferred to REO at net realizable value (fair value less selling costs) totaled approximately \$7.7 million during the six months ended June 30, 2010. The increase was partially offset by REO sales totaling approximately \$4.7 million during the six months ended June 30, 2010 and an \$0.8 million increase in valuation allowance related to additional write-downs of REO. REO properties increased to 67 properties at June 30, 2010 as compared to 51 properties at December 31, 2009.

Assets held in trust for deferred compensation plans

Assets held in trust of deferred compensation plans totaled \$11.8 million at June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009. In conjunction with the reorganization and emergence from bankruptcy, the Excess Benefit Plan, SERP and SERP II plans were terminated and allowed claims of approximately \$12.2 million were paid to beneficiaries on the Effective Date. Subsequent to the Effective Date in July 2010, Signature made a demand on the trustee to terminate the deferred compensation plans following the distributions made to the beneficiaries on the Effective Date. Signature received funds from the trustee in the total amount of \$11.7 million, which reflected the net proceeds remaining in the deferred compensation plans after liquidation of the assets. For additional information about the termination of the Excess Benefit Plan, SERP and SERP II and related matters, see Note 2 Significant Events in 2010 in the Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Form 10-Q.

Repurchase reserve

Repurchase reserves decreased to \$8.9 million at June 30, 2010 as compared to \$37.2 million at December 31, 2009. The decrease in the reserve is related to \$28.3 million in charge-offs due to settlement payments associated with three settlement agreements involving repurchase claims with counterparties resolving a significant number of loan repurchase claims. In preparing its estimate for repurchase reserves, which includes both known and unknown claims, management considers the loan products, vintage, aging of repurchase claims, investor settlements and actual loss experience.

As part of Fremont's bankruptcy case, several settlements with various institutional trustees and whole loan investors that had asserted repurchase claims against FRC were achieved. The settlements were primarily resolved with Bankruptcy Court approval. As a result of the repurchase claim resolution efforts, the Company has significantly reduced the number of unresolved claims. Outstanding claims totaled \$76.1 million at June 30, 2010 as compared to \$257.5 million at December 31, 2009. New repurchase claim volume totaled \$21.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010.

Liabilities of deferred compensation plans

Liabilities of deferred compensation plans declined \$11.8 million to zero at June 30, 2010 as compared to \$11.8 million at December 31, 2009. The decrease is primarily related to distributions of \$12.6 million, net of dividend reinvestments, partially offset by an increase of \$0.7 million in the fair value of the assets held in trust. In conjunction with the reorganization and emergence from bankruptcy, the beneficiaries of the Excess Benefit Plan, SERP and SERP II plans received distributions of \$12.2 million in accordance with the distributions on the Effective Date resulting in the settlement of the liability of the deferred compensation plans. For additional information about the termination of the Excess Benefit Plan, SERP and SERP II, see Note 2 Significant Events in 2010 in the Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Form 10-Q.

Liabilities subject to compromise

Liabilities subject to compromise decreased to zero at December 31, 2010 as compared to \$37.7 million at December 31, 2009. The decrease is related to the Company's emergence from bankruptcy and the settlement of claims related to litigation cases. Pursuant to the Plan, on the Effective Date, claims aggregating approximately \$36.5 million in litigation settlements were paid to satisfy Allowed Claims, as defined in the Plan.

Changes in Results of Operations - Discontinued Operations

In accordance with FASB ASC 205-20, loss after taxes from discontinued operations and the net loss on disposal of discontinued operations are reported in the consolidated statements of operations after income from continuing operations for all periods presented.

-38-

Table of Contents

The following table presents selected components of the Company's statements of operations for its discontinued operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009.

(Debtor-In-Possession for the Period June 18, 2008 through								
June 11, 2010)		Three Months Ended Six Months Ended						
	June 30,				June 30,			
(Dollars in thousands)	2010		2009		2010		2009	
Interest income	\$1,055		\$1,617		\$2,286		\$3,364	
NON-INTEREST INCOME:								
Gain (loss) on loans held for sale	2,238		(247)	4,463		(3,228))
Loss on real estate owned, net	(1,414)	(151)	(1,526)	(890)
Other	381		313		521		651	
Total non-interest income	1,205		(85)	3,458		(3,467)
NON-INTEREST EXPENSE:								
Compensation	1,409		2,835		3,122		6,426	
Professional fees	(245)	(2,256)	2,489		2,332	
Insurance	1,753		2,234		3,497		4,483	
Litigation	250		38,750		1,282		47,750	
Restructuring charges	-		4,309		-		4,309	
Other	519		2,621		1,087		5,319	
Total non-interest expense	3,686		48,493		11,477		70,619	
Loss from discontinued operations before reorganization								
items and income taxes	(1,426)	(46,961)	(5,733)	(70,722)
Reorganization items, net	116		187		394		497	
Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes	(1,542)	(47,148)	(6,127)	(71,219)
Income tax (benefit) expense	-		(23,519)	150		(23,519)
Loss from discontinued operations	\$(1,542)	\$(23,629)	\$(6,277)	\$(47,700)

Three months ended June 30, 2010 compared to three months ended June 30, 2009

General

Loss from discontinued operations decreased \$22.1 million to a loss of \$1.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to a loss of \$23.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease in loss from discontinued operations is primarily related to an increase of \$1.3 million in non-interest income and a \$44.8 million decrease in non-interest expense, partially offset by a \$0.6 million reduction in interest income and a \$23.5 million decrease in income tax benefit.

Interest income

Interest income decreased \$0.5 million to \$1.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$1.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease in interest income is primarily related to a reduction in interest related to the financing of servicing advances associated with the sale of mortgage servicing rights and a reduction in interest on loans held for sale. Other interest income declined to zero for the three months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$0.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease was associated with the repayment of outstanding servicing advances in the second quarter of 2009 that were financed by FIL to a third-party. Loan interest income declined to \$1.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$1.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease was associated with a reduction of the residential real estate loans held for sale due to loans transferred to REO at the time of foreclosure, borrower payoffs

and principal payments.

Non-interest income

Non-interest income increased \$1.3 million to \$1.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to (\$0.1) million for the three months ended June 30, 2009. The increase in non-interest income is primarily related to a \$2.5 million increase in gain on loans held for sale partially offset by a \$1.3 million increase in loss on real estate owned, net. See below for further discussion.

Gain (loss) on loans held for sale

Gain (loss) on loans held for sale increased \$2.5 million to a gain of \$2.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to a loss of (\$0.2) million for the three months ended June 30, 2009. The gain for the three months ended June 30, 2010 is primarily related to a reversal of \$1.7 million in provision for valuation allowance for loans held for sale primarily related to increases in estimated fair value as a result of declines in borrower delinquencies, borrower pay-offs and principal payments. The loss on loans held for sale for the three months ended June 30, 2009 is primarily related to \$0.2 million in lower of cost or market write-downs on the loans held for sale portfolio associated with increased borrower delinquencies and increases in loss severities associated with the deterioration in the mortgage market and related home price declines.

-39-

Table of Contents

Loss on real estate owned, net

Loss on real estate owned, net increased \$1.3 million to \$1.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$0.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009. The increase is primarily due to a \$0.5 million increase in additional impairment write-downs subsequent to foreclosure and a \$0.5 million increase in REO expenses. Additionally, loss on sale of REO increased \$0.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010. The increase in REO expenses is associated with increased levels of REO properties during the three months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2009.

Non-interest expense

Non-interest expense decreased \$44.8 million to \$3.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$48.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease in non-interest expense is primarily related to a \$1.4 million reduction in compensation expense, a \$0.5 million decrease in insurance expense, a \$38.5 million decrease in litigation expense, a \$4.3 million decrease in restructuring charges and a \$2.1 million decrease in other non-interest expense. The decrease in expense was partially offset by a \$2.0 million decrease in net recoveries of professional fees. See below for further discussion.

Compensation

Compensation expense decreased \$1.4 million to \$1.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$2.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease in compensation is primarily related to reductions in personnel associated with previously disposed businesses and reduced operations related to other discontinued business activities.

Professional fees

Professional fees increased \$2.0 million to a net recovery of (\$0.2) million for the three months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to a net recovery of (\$2.3) million for the three months ended June 30, 2009. The increase is primarily related to reduced recoveries of professional fees. The (\$0.2) million in professional fees for the three months ended June 30, 2010 is primarily related to \$2.3 million in legal and professional fees offset by \$2.5 million in legal and professional fee reimbursements related to an insurance policy claim in connection with certain litigation matters. The (\$2.3) million in professional fees offset by \$5.2 million in legal and professional fee reimbursements related to an insurance policy claim in connection with certain litigation matters.

Professional fees primarily related to litigation costs and other professional services associated with the former insurance, banking and residential lending divisions of FIL, including the prosecution of litigation where the Company is the plaintiff. Professional fees directly related to the bankruptcy filing are included in reorganization items, net.

Insurance

Insurance expense decreased \$0.5 million to \$1.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$2.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease is primarily related to the amortization of premiums prior to the Effective Date for directors and officers and fiduciary liability policies associated with discontinued operations over the remaining term of the policies.

Litigation

Litigation expense decreased \$38.5 million to \$0.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$38.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease is primarily related to reduced litigation accruals recorded in the three months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2009 as certain legal matters had been resolved. The litigation settlement expense for the three months ended June 30, 2009 is primarily associated with the negotiation and settlements related to cases involving Rampino Stipulation (\$22.0 million), California Insurance Commissioner (\$5.0 million), Commonwealth of Massachusetts (\$10.0 million) and

Enron (\$1.5 million). For additional information about the litigation settlements, see "C. Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceedings And Events Occurring During Such Proceedings" of Part I, Item 1 of the Comprehensive Form 10-K.

Restructuring charges

Restructuring charges decreased \$4.3 million to zero for the three months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$4.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease is attributable to no relocations or business disposals during 2010 as compared to the prior year. During the three months ended June 30, 2009, the \$4.3 million in restructuring charges primarily related to Fremont's relocation from its previous headquarters in Brea, California to Anaheim, California and the negotiation of lease termination agreements. In June 2009, Fremont executed a lease termination agreement with the landlord which required Fremont to pay a termination fee of \$0.7 million to the landlord, vacate the premises and convey all remaining premises and equipment in the leased premises to the subtenant. In addition, Fremont commenced its relocation in the second quarter of 2009 and recorded a \$4.2 million restructuring charge associated with the relocation and conveyance of premises and equipment and reversed \$0.7 million in deferred rent and lease incentives related to the office space in Brea, California.

-40-

Table of Contents

Other

Other non-interest expense decreased \$2.1 million to \$0.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$2.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease is primarily related to reductions in personnel, office space, information technology and operating expenses associated with discontinued operations.

Income tax benefit

Income tax benefit decreased \$23.5 million to zero for the three months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to an income tax benefit of \$23.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009. The \$23.5 million income tax benefit for the three months ended June 30, 2009 primarily relates to a reversal of income tax provisions related to the resolution of tax matters previously accrued.

Six months ended June 30, 2010 compared to six months ended June 30, 2009

General

Loss from discontinued operations decreased \$41.4 million to a loss of \$6.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to a loss of \$47.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease in loss from discontinued operations is primarily related to an increase of \$6.9 million in non-interest income and a \$59.1 million decrease in non-interest expense, partially offset by a \$1.1 million reduction in interest income and a \$23.7 million decrease in income tax benefit.

Interest income

Interest income decreased \$1.1 million to \$2.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$3.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease in interest income is primarily related to a reduction in interest related to the financing of servicing advances associated with the sale of mortgage servicing rights and a reduction in interest on loans held for sale. Other interest income declined to zero for the six months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$0.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease was associated with the repayment of outstanding servicing advances in the second quarter of 2009 that were financed by FIL to a third-party. Loan interest income declined to \$2.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$2.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease was associated with a reduction of the residential loans held for sale portfolio due to loans transferred to REO at the time of foreclosure, borrower payoffs and principal payments.

Non-interest income

Non-interest income increased \$6.9 million to \$3.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to an expense of (\$3.5) million for the six months ended June 30, 2009. The increase in non-interest income is primarily related to a \$7.7 million increase in gain on loans held for sale partially offset by a \$0.6 million increase in loss on real estate owned, net. See below for further discussion.

Gain (loss) on loans held for sale

Gain (loss) on loans held for sale increased \$7.7 million to a gain of \$4.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to a loss of (\$3.2) million for the six months ended June 30, 2009. The gain for the six months ended June 30, 2010 is primarily related to a reversal of \$4.2 million in provision for valuation allowance for loans held for sale primarily related to increases in estimated fair value as a result of declines in borrower delinquencies, borrower pay-offs and principal payments. The loss on loans held for sale for the six months ended June 30, 2009 is primarily related to \$2.8 million in lower of cost or market write-downs on the loans held for sale portfolio associated with increased borrower delinquencies and increases in loss severities associated with the deterioration in the mortgage market and related home price declines.

Loss on real estate owned, net

Loss on real estate owned, net increased \$0.6 million to \$1.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$0.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009. The increase is primarily due to a \$1.1 million increase in REO expenses associated with increased levels of REO properties during the six months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2009. The increase was partially offset by a \$0.3 million increase in gain on sale of REO and a \$0.1 million decrease in impairment write-downs subsequent to foreclosure.

-41-

Table of Contents

Non-interest expense

Non-interest expense decreased \$59.1 million to \$11.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$70.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease in non-interest expense is primarily related to a \$3.3 million reduction in compensation expense, a \$1.0 million decrease in insurance expense, a \$46.5 million decrease in litigation expense, a \$4.3 million decrease in restructuring charges and a \$4.2 million decrease in other non-interest expense. See below for further discussion.

Compensation

Compensation expense decreased \$3.3 million to \$3.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$6.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease in compensation is primarily related to reductions in personnel associated with previously disposed businesses and reduced operations related to other discontinued business activities.

Insurance

Insurance expense decreased \$1.0 million to \$3.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$4.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease is primarily related to the amortization of premiums prior to the Effective Date for directors and officers and fiduciary liability policies associated with discontinued operations over the remaining term of the policies.

Litigation

Litigation expense decreased \$46.5 million to \$1.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$47.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease is primarily related to reduced litigation accruals recorded in the six months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2009 as certain legal matters had been resolved. The litigation settlement expense for the six months ended June 30, 2009 is primarily associated with the negotiation and settlements related to cases involving BONY (\$6.0 million), Rampino Stipulation (\$22.0 million), California Insurance Commissioner (\$5.0 million), Commonwealth of Massachusetts (\$10.0 million) and Enron (\$2.5 million). For additional information about the litigation settlements, see "C. Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceedings And Events Occurring During Such Proceedings" of Part I, Item 1 of the Comprehensive Form 10-K.

Restructuring charges

Restructuring charges decreased \$4.3 million to zero for the six months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$4.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease is attributable to no relocations or business disposals during 2010 as compared to the prior year. During the six months ended June 30, 2009, the \$4.3 million in restructuring charges primarily related to Fremont's relocation from its previous headquarters in Brea, California to Anaheim, California and the negotiation of lease termination agreements. In June 2009, Fremont executed a lease termination agreement with the landlord which required Fremont to pay a termination fee of \$0.7 million to the landlord, vacate the premises and convey all remaining premises and equipment in the leased premises to the subtenant. In addition, Fremont commenced its relocation in the second quarter of 2009 and recorded a \$4.2 million restructuring charge associated with the relocation and conveyance of premises and equipment and reversed \$0.7 million in deferred rent and lease incentives related to the office space in Brea, California.

Other

Other non-interest expense decreased \$4.2 million to \$1.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to \$5.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009. The decrease is primarily related to reductions in personnel, office space, information technology and operating expenses associated with discontinued operations.

Income tax expense (benefit)

Income tax expense increased \$23.7 million to \$0.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 as compared to an income tax benefit of \$23.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009. The \$0.2 million income tax provision

for the six months ended June 30, 2010 is primarily related to state income tax liabilities. The \$23.5 million income tax benefit for the six months ended June 30, 2009 primarily relates to a reversal of income tax provisions related to the resolution of tax matters previously accrued.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Overview of Capital Restructuring as a Result of the Bankruptcy Proceedings

On May 25, 2010, the Bankruptcy Court entered the Confirmation Order confirming the Plan, which was binding on all shareholders and creditors of Fremont on the Effective Date. The Confirmation Order provided for a number of material transactions and events that affected liquidity and funding sources as summarized below.

-42-

Table of Contents

Distributions. Pursuant to the Plan, on the Effective Date, Signature paid claims aggregating approximately \$280.8 million to satisfy Allowed Claims, as defined in the Plan, and which are identified in the table below (dollars in thousands):

	Distribution
	Amount
Class 1 (Allowed secured claims)	\$8
Class 2 (Priority non-tax)	-
Class 3A (Non-note general unsecured creditors)	49,059
Class 3B (Senior Notes)	186,782
Class 3C (TOPrS)	45,000
Total	\$280,849

In addition to the Allowed Claims identified above, the Company paid \$2.7 million on the Effective Date in professional fees to five firms involved in Fremont's bankruptcy case.

Additionally, pursuant to various settlement agreements related to repurchase reserve matters, and with Bankruptcy Court approval, Fremont paid out an additional \$28.3 million during the weeks leading up to the Effective Date.

Signature Common Stock Investment and Warrants Issuance. On the Effective Date, the Signature Investors purchased an aggregate of 12.5 million shares of Signature's common stock for an aggregate of \$10 million in cash pursuant to the terms of subscription agreements between the Company and each of the Signature Investors. Additionally, pursuant to the Plan, Signature issued the Warrants, which were exercisable for an aggregate of 15 million shares of Signature's common stock for an aggregate cash purchase price of \$300,000. The Warrants have a term of 10 years and an exercise price of \$1.03 per share. The Warrants vest 20% on the Effective Date and 20% in annual installments until the Warrants are fully vested on the fourth anniversary of the Effective Date. The \$300,000 purchase price for the Warrants is payable as the Warrants vest. Accordingly, the Warrant Investors paid an aggregate amount of \$60,000 on the Effective Date and will pay \$60,000 in the aggregate on each subsequent vesting installment. For additional information about the issuance and sale of the Signature common stock and the Warrants, see Note 2 Significant Events in 2010 in the Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Form 10-Q.

Subsequent to the aforementioned distributions and the issuance and sale of Signature common stock and the Warrants, the Company had approximately \$49.1 million in cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2010. In October 2010, the Company received an IRS tax refund of \$24.4 million, net of other potential tax liabilities, related to the carryback of the Company's 2008 NOLs to the taxable year periods 2003, 2004 and 2005. At December 31, 2010, the Company had approximately \$71.0 million in cash and cash equivalents. In February 2011, the IRS notified the Company that the \$24.8 million refund was subject to review. For more information see Note 16 Subsequent Events in the Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Form 10-Q.

Sources and Uses of Liquidity

January 2009 through Effective Date (June 11, 2010)

During the bankruptcy period, Fremont's operations focused on maximizing the value of its assets, which, included the liquidation and sale of certain assets, minimizing its costs and liabilities through the negotiation and resolution of litigation, loan repurchase claims and other claims. In particular, the Company managed its cash and cash equivalents, as well as the remaining residential and commercial loan portfolios, commercial real estate investments and other assets. During 2009 and through the Effective Date, the Company's results and uses of liquidity reflect the impact of filing for bankruptcy, including significant professional fees and other reorganization expenses, as well as litigation

expenses related to the negotiation and settlement of legal matters.

Emergence from Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceedings

Subsequent to the Effective Date, Signature's primary sources of liquidity includes cash and cash equivalents of Fremont. Signature also has Legacy Assets related to Fremont's prior businesses, which include a residential mortgage portfolio, residential real estate, and certain other investments that generate income. These Legacy Assets are being managed to maximize recoveries and value for shareholders and will be redeployed into Signature's business strategy over time. Additionally, Signature has alternative sources of liquidity available to fund its business and operations, including, but not limited to funds generated from implementing its new business strategy described below, borrowings from third-party lenders and debt and equity offerings.

-43-

Table of Contents

Pursuant to the Plan, Signature operates in two primary business lines: (i) Special Situation Lending and (ii) Strategic Acquisitions. Sources of cash flows from Special Situation Lending may include principal and interest collections from senior secured and junior secured debt financing as well as investment returns from corporate bonds, trade claims, and other structured debt instruments. Sources of cash flows from Strategic Acquisitions may include operating cash flows from the direct purchase of a controlling interest, and in some cases all or substantially all of its equity securities of an operating business or through a structured debt transaction that results in obtaining a significant equity interest from a debt-for-equity conversion, bankruptcy or foreclosure event, or other transactions.

Subsequent to the Effective Date, Signature's primary uses of liquidity includes operating expenses associated with the management of the Company's business, including the Legacy Assets, professional fees and related expenses associated with reorganization, the SEC compliance project, and litigation, and interest payments on the Notes Payable. Additionally, pursuant to the Plan, uses of liquidity are expected to include funding of structured debt instruments and acquisitions of businesses.

Summary of Cash Flows

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities

During the six months ended June 30, 2010, net cash used in operating activities totaled \$322.8 million. The cash used in operating activities primarily relates to payments aggregating approximately \$280.8 million to satisfy Allowed Claims on the Effective Date and \$28.3 million paid to settle repurchase reserve matters during the weeks leading up to the Effective Date. Additionally, the \$22.0 million net loss during the period contributed to the cash used in operating activities.

During the six months ended June 30, 2009, net cash provided by operating activities totaled \$20.5 million. The cash provided by operating activities primarily relates to \$51.5 million in cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations as a result of \$53.1 million in collections of servicing advances, partially offset by net losses during the period.

Net cash provided by investing activities

During the six months ended June 30, 2010, net cash provided by investing activities totaled \$5.6 million. The cash provided by investing activities primarily relates to proceeds of \$5.2 million from the sale of REO.

During the six months ended June 30, 2009, net cash provided by investing activities totaled \$5.4 million. The cash provided by investing activities primarily relates to \$5.8 million in proceeds received from the sale of commercial real estate investments, \$1.8 million in proceeds from the sale of REO, offset by \$1.1 million in capital contributed for funding commitments on commercial real estate investments.

Net cash provided by financing activities

During the six months ended June 30, 2010, net cash provided by financing activities totaled \$10.1 million. The cash provided by financing activities relates to \$10.1 million in proceeds received from the issuance of common stock and warrants on the Effective Date.

During the six months ended June 30, 2009, there were no activities within financing activities as Fremont operated its business as a debtor-in-possession under the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

Prior to 2007, Fremont securitized a portion of its residential real estate loans. Securitization was a process of transforming the loans into securities sold to investors. The loans were first sold to a special purpose corporation, which then transferred them to a Qualified Special Purpose Entity ("QSPE") which was legally isolated from Fremont. The QSPE, in turn, issued interest-bearing securities, commonly known as asset-backed securities, which were secured by the future cash flows to be derived from the securitized loans. The QSPE used the proceeds from the issuance of the securities to pay the purchase price of the securitized loans.

-44-

Table of Contents

Securitization was used to provide an additional source of liquidity. These securitizations of mortgage loans were structured as sales. The special purpose entities to which we transferred the mortgage loans were QSPEs and, therefore under previous accounting rules, were not subject to consolidation through 2009. As disclosed in the Recent Accounting Standards below, accounting standards were amended effective January 1, 2010 to eliminate the concept of a QSPE. We re-evaluated these QSPEs as well as all other potentially significant interests in other unconsolidated entities to determine if we should include them in our Consolidated Financial Statements. We determined that we are not the primary beneficiary of the VIEs and therefore do not consolidate the loan securitization trusts.

The investors and the QSPEs do not have any recourse to the Company if the cash flows generated by the securitized loans are inadequate to service the securities issued by the QSPEs. At the close of each securitization, Fremont removed from its balance sheet the carrying value of the loans securitized and added to its balance sheet the estimated fair value of the assets obtained in consideration for the loans, which generally included the cash received (net of transaction expenses), retained junior class securities (referred to as residual interests) and mortgage servicing rights.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The Company's contractual obligations at June 30, 2010 are summarized by contractual maturity in the following table:

			Payments D	ue by Period		
		Currently	Less Than			More than
(Dollars in thousands)	Total	Due	1 Year	1-3 Years	3-5 Years	5 Years
Notes payable	\$39,000	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$39,000

The Notes Payable were issued by the Company pursuant to the Notes Payable Indenture. The Notes Payable were issued on July 16, 2010, but as they were an obligation of the Company pursuant to the TOPrS Settlement under the Plan, Signature accrued such liability as of June 11, 2010. The Notes Payable mature in December 2016 and bear interest at 9.0% annually, paid quarterly beginning September 30, 2010. Additional information concerning the Notes Payable is included in Note 5 — Notes Payable, Senior Notes and Junior Subordinated Debentures in the Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Form 10-Q.

On May 17, 2011, Signature received a notice of default from the Notes Payable Trustee for not satisfying a covenant to file with the Notes Payable Trustee its periodic reports required to be filed under the Exchange Act with the SEC. Signature has until August 15, 2011 to cure this default under the Notes Payable Indenture. With the filing of this Quarterly Report and the simultaneous filings of the Company's Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended March 31, 2010, September 30, 2010 and the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010, Signature will have cured the reporting delinquency set forth in the Notes Payable Trustee's notice of default.

We also have repurchase reserve liabilities related to residential real estate loans that were sold that are subject to standard industry representations and warranties that may require the Company to repurchase certain loans. Additional information concerning repurchase reserves included in discontinued operations is included in Note 14 Discontinued Operations in the Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part 1, Item 1 of this Form 10-Q.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risks

Not applicable to smaller reporting companies.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Overview

Signature successfully emerged from bankruptcy proceedings on June 11, 2010 with a new Board of Directors, which has an audit committee made up entirely of independent members of the Board of Directors. In July 2010, a new senior management team of Signature was appointed. With the assistance of financial consultants, the new management team under the oversight of the audit committee focused its resources on undertaking the project of completing all of Signature's delinquent Exchange Act periodic reports and the related financial statements as soon as practicable, including this Form 10-Q.

-45-

Table of Contents

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

An evaluation was carried out by our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") and Interim Chief Financial Officer ("Interim CFO"), of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this Form 10-Q. Based upon that evaluation, the CEO and Interim CFO concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were not effective at a reasonable assurance level, due to the identification of a material weakness, as discussed below and in more detail in the Comprehensive Form 10-K.

Material Weakness

In connection with its assessment of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, management identified a material weakness related to our effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. The Company did not maintain a sufficient number of financial and accounting staff personnel with the appropriate level of accounting knowledge and experience in order to timely provide accurate and reliable financial statements of the Company that were prepared and reviewed in accordance with GAAP.

Ongoing Remediation of Material Weakness

The Company has devoted virtually all of its accounting resources to completing its delinquent filings under Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, including preparing and filing the Comprehensive Form 10-K on May 17, 2011, preparing and filing of this Form 10-Q, as well as its other quarterly reports for the 2010 fiscal year and its Annual Report on Form 10-K for December 31, 2010. As a result, the Company has not had the resources available to address or remediate the material weakness in the Company's internal control over financial reporting. In particular, management has yet to install internal control systems and procedures that provide the necessary level of assurance regarding the accuracy of the Company's financial reporting that will not require the use of outside financial consultants and the type of additional review and other procedures that has been undertaken in connection with the preparation of the financial statements contained in this Form 10-Q. However, the Company has taken the following steps during fiscal 2010 and during the first half of 2011 to attempt to remediate the material weakness in the Company's internal control over financial reporting:

- -Management has developed, adopted and documented formal accounting and reporting policies with respect to all significant transactions that are relevant to its business and necessary to properly account for and report our results for the periods presented in this Form 10-Q. This includes policies regarding segment reporting, accounting for reorganizations (accounting during bankruptcy), discontinued operations, adoption of new accounting policies, accounting for mortgage related assets (such as mortgage loans held for sale), accounting for derivatives, and accounting for repurchase and litigation reserves.
- -Management is strengthening its policies and procedures related to critical accounting policies, including assets and liabilities that require management to make estimates and assumptions such as fair value measurements. Some of these procedures have been implemented as of the date of the filing of this Form 10-Q.
- -Management has been able to reorganize the accounting group and has recruited new, experienced accounting and finance employees to oversee the accounting function on a go-forward basis. The Company continues to use consultants in some areas, but these areas are limited and will be transitioned to full time employees in the near future.
- -Management is implementing a more timely review by the accounting group of business transactions the Company engages in. The accounting group will be involved as the business transactions are contemplated and will provide timely accounting support and accounting policy implementation as the transaction unfolds and therefore this will allow the Company to account for the consummation of transactions on a timely basis.

The Company's remediation process is on-going and management hopes to complete the implementation of its remediation efforts during 2011, with the expectation that the Company will have adequate internal control over financial reporting and effective disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2011. However, since management has not completed its remediation efforts, there can be no assurances that the Company's remediation efforts will be successful or sufficient in remediating the material weakness.

-46-

Table of Contents

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

In connection with the evaluation required by paragraph (d) of Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act, there was no change identified in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended June 30, 2010 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We are currently a defendant in various legal actions and asserted claims in connection with the prior business and operations of Fremont and its subsidiaries and in the normal course of business. We anticipate that we will become involved in new litigation matters from time to time in the future. We will incur legal and related costs concerning litigation and may, from time to time, determine to settle some or all of the cases, regardless of our assessment of its legal position. The amount of legal defense costs and settlements in any period will depend on many factors, including the status of cases, the number of cases that are in trial or about to be brought to trial, and the opposing parties' aggressiveness in pursuing their cases and their perception of their legal position. For additional information concerning material pending and threatened litigation actions and proceedings against the Company, see Part I, Item 3. Legal Proceedings in the Comprehensive Form 10-K.

The Company experienced new developments with pending legal matters during the second quarter of 2010.

ERISA Class Action. From April through June of 2007, six complaints seeking class certification were filed in the United States District Court for the Central District of California against Fremont and various officers, directors and employees by participants in Fremont's Investment Incentive Plan, 401(k) and Employee Stock Ownership Plan (collectively "the Plans") alleging violations of ERISA in connection with Fremont stock held by the Plans. The six complaints were consolidated in a single proceeding. On April 15, 2010, the Court granted the Order for Class Certification under Rule 23(b)(3). On March 22, 2011, Signature entered into a settlement stipulation whereby Signature's insurance carriers will pay \$21.0 million to settle the claims of the certified class. On April 25, 2011, the Court granted preliminary approval of the settlement stipulation. The settlement stipulation requires final approval which could take several months before the Court makes a final determination.

Settlement with Federal Insurance. On May 7, 2010, Fremont and FRC entered into a Settlement Agreement and Release with Federal Insurance Company ("Federal"), which related to Federal's obligations to indemnify Fremont and FRC's liabilities in connection with a legal matter involving the Commonwealth of Massachusetts as well as certain other lawsuits to settle an adversary proceeding between Fremont and Federal. Pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement and Release, Federal agreed to pay Fremont approximately \$2.9 million which, together with other amounts previously paid by Federal to Fremont (during 2009 and earlier in 2010), equaled the policy limits of \$10.0 million.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The Comprehensive Form 10-K includes a detailed discussion of risk factors associated with Business Risks and Risks Related to an Investment in Our Common Stock. The risks presented below are more specifically related to risks related to our transactions, including companies we may provide capital to, and should be read in conjunction with the risk factors and information disclosed in the Comprehensive Form 10-K and our other periodic Exchange Act fillings with the SEC.

Strategic acquisitions and joint ventures, or Signature's entry into new business areas, may result in additional risks and uncertainties in its business. Signature expects to grow its business through internal expansion of commercial

lending operations as well through strategic acquisitions or joint ventures. When we make strategic acquisitions or enter into joint ventures, we expect to face numerous risks and uncertainties in combining or integrating the relevant businesses and systems including, potentially, the need to combine accounting and data processing systems and management controls and to integrate relationships with customers and business partners. Our participation in any other ventures that we may enter into may subject us to additional risks and uncertainties because we may be dependent upon, and subject us to liability, losses or reputational damage relating to systems, controls and personnel that are not under our control. Conflicts or disagreements between us and the other members of a venture may negatively impact our businesses. Finally, expansions, acquisitions or joint ventures may require significant managerial attention which may be diverted from our other operations. These capital, equity and managerial commitments may impair the operation of our businesses and as a result negatively impact our financial condition and/or operating results.

-47-

Table of Contents

Providing capital to middle market companies involves a high degree of risk. Companies operating in the middle market, which we generally describe as those with revenues between \$25 million and \$500 million, generally have (i) less access to capital to fund their business, (ii) high dependence on the management talents and efforts of a small group of persons, (iii) narrower product lines, smaller market shares, or/or larger customer relationships, and (iv) less publicly available information about their business, operations and financial condition compared to larger companies. These companies would also generally be considered to have ratings that are below investment grade. We are dependent on the ability of SCA's management team and professional staff to obtain adequate information to evaluate the potential returns from providing capital to these companies and to manage our assets accordingly in light of such risks. If they are unable to uncover all material information about these middle market companies that we may transact with, they may not make a fully informed decision, and we may lose all or part of the capital we provide, or be subject to the impact of operating losses associated with such businesses.

The lack of liquidity for the types of transactions we are pursuing may adversely affect our business. We plan to provide capital to companies whose securities are not publicly traded, and whose securities may be subject to legal and other restrictions on resale or will otherwise be less liquid than publicly traded securities. Given these circumstances, while we do not expect to be able to achieve liquidity in our portfolio over a short-term period, the illiquidity of these capital infusions may make it difficult for us to get our capital back when projected or desired. In addition, if we are required to liquidate all or a portion of our assets quickly, we may realize significantly less than the values shown on our financial statements, which would cause us to suffer losses and potentially adversely affect our business.

Until we are able to diversify our asset base, we will face concentration risk whereby a loss on one or more of our transactions could have a materially adverse effect on our company. Since the Effective Date, we have provided capital in a limited number of situations in furtherance of our business strategy. Until we have increased the amount of capital deployed in our new business strategy to create a diversified portfolio, a loss on one or more situations would affect us more adversely than such loss would affect a company with a larger and more diverse portfolio.

The companies we provide capital to may incur debt that ranks equally with, or senior to, the capital we provide to such companies. The companies we provide capital to may have, or may be permitted to incur, debt or other capital that ranks equally with, or senior to, the capital we provide them. By their terms, such securities may entitle the holders to receive payment of interest, principal, dividends or other forms of capital on or before the dates on which we would be entitled to receive payments with respect to the capital we may provide. Also, in the event of insolvency, liquidation, dissolution, reorganization or bankruptcy of a company we have provided capital to, holders of securities senior to our capital in such company would typically be entitled to receive payment in full before we receive any distribution. After repaying such senior capital, such portfolio company may not have any remaining assets to use for repaying its obligation to us. In the case of other capital ranking equally with the capital we may provide, we would have to share on an equal basis any distributions with other similarly situated capital providers in the event of an insolvency, liquidation, dissolution, reorganization or bankruptcy of the relevant portfolio company.

Businesses, specialized assets, or loan assets acquired by us may not perform as expected and we may not be able to achieve adequate consideration for dispositions. As part of our business strategy, we may pursue acquisitions of other companies, specialized assets, or loan assets. Such acquisitions may involve numerous risks, including difficulties in integrating the operations, services, products and personnel of the acquired company or specialized asset; the diversion of management's attention from other business concerns; entering markets in which we have little or no direct prior experience; or the potential loss of key employees of the acquired company. Acquired businesses, specialized assets and loan assets may have credit related risks arising from substantially different underwriting standards associated with those businesses or assets. Furthermore, these acquisitions may result in potentially dilutive issuances of equity securities and the incurrence of additional debt, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

In addition, we may from time to time decide to sell companies or assets. There can be no assurance that we will be successful in completing these transactions. If these transactions are completed, they may reduce the size of our business. There is also no assurance that we will receive adequate consideration for any company or asset dispositions. As a result, our future disposition of businesses or assets could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and result of operations.

There may be circumstances where our debt capital could be subordinated to claims of other creditors or we could be subject to lender liability claims. Even though we may have structured certain of the capital we provide as senior loans, if one of our portfolio companies were to go bankrupt, depending on the facts and circumstances and based upon principles of equitable subordination as defined by existing case law, a bankruptcy court could subordinate all or a portion of our claim to that of other creditors and transfer any lien securing such subordinated claim to the bankruptcy estate. The principles of equitable subordination defined by case law have generally indicated that a claim may be subordinated only if its holder is guilty of misconduct or where the senior loan is re-characterized as an equity investment and the senior lender has actually provided significant managerial assistance to the bankrupt debtor. We may also be subject to lender liability claims for actions taken by us with respect to a borrower's business or instances where we exercise control over the borrower. It is possible that we could become subject to a lender's liability claim, including as a result of actions taken in rendering significant managerial assistance or actions to compel and collect payments from the borrower outside the ordinary course of business.

-48-

Table of Contents

Second priority liens on collateral securing loans that we make to companies generally will be subject to the actions of, and potentially control of, senior creditors with first priority liens whereby the value of the collateral may not be sufficient to repay in full both the first priority creditors and us. Certain loans that we may make will be secured by a second priority security interest in the same collateral pledged by a company to secure senior debt owed by a company to commercial banks or other traditional lenders. Often the senior lender has procured covenants from the company prohibiting the incurrence of additional secured debt without the senior lender's consent. Prior to and as a condition of permitting the portfolio company to borrow money from us secured by the same collateral pledged to the senior lender, the senior lender will require assurances that it will control the disposition of any collateral in the event of bankruptcy or other default. In many such cases, the senior lender will require us to enter into an "intercreditor agreement" prior to permitting the portfolio company to borrow from us. Typically the intercreditor agreements we are requested to execute expressly subordinate our debt instruments to those held by the senior lender and further provide that the senior lender shall control: (1) the commencement of foreclosure or other proceedings to liquidate and collect on the collateral; (2) the nature, timing and conduct of foreclosure or other collection proceedings; (3) the amendment of any collateral document; (4) the release of the security interests in respect of any collateral; and (5) the waiver of defaults under any security agreement. Because of the control we may cede to senior lenders under intercreditor agreements we may enter, we may be unable to realize the proceeds of any collateral securing some of our loans.

The value of the collateral securing our loan and debt instruments depends on market and economic conditions, the availability of buyers and other factors. There can be no assurance that the proceeds, if any, from the sale or sales of the collateral securing our loan and debt instruments will be sufficient to satisfy the obligations of our borrowers. There is also a risk that such collateral securing our debt may decrease in value over time, may be difficult to sell in a timely manner, may be difficult to appraise and may fluctuate in value based upon the success of the borrower and market conditions. If such proceeds are not sufficient to repay amounts outstanding under our loan obligations, then we, to the extent not repaid from the proceeds of the sale of the collateral, will only have an unsecured claim against the Company's remaining assets, if any, which may result in the incurrence of losses.

We generally will not control the companies obligated to repay our loans and other debt instruments. We do not expect to control the companies obligated to repay the loans we may make or purchase, even though we may have board representation or board observation rights, and our debt agreements may contain certain restrictive covenants. As a result, we are subject to the risk that a company in which we provide capital may make business decisions with which we disagree and the management of such company, as representatives of the holders of their common equity, may take risks or otherwise act in ways that do not serve our interests as debt holders. Due to the lack of liquidity associated with capital provided to non publicly-traded companies, we may not be able to dispose of our loans in such companies as readily as we would like or at an appropriate valuation. As a result, a borrower may make decisions that could decrease the value of our portfolio holdings.

We may not realize gains from equity securities associated with the loans we provide or the business acquisitions we make. Certain loans that we make or purchase may include warrants or other equity securities and the businesses we acquire will result in Signature obtaining significant equity interests. Equity interests involve a number of significant risks, including the risk of further dilution as a result of additional issuances, inability to access additional capital and failure to pay current distributions. Investments in preferred securities involve special risks, such as the risk of deferred distributions, credit risk, illiquidity and limited voting rights. In addition, we may from time to time make non-control, equity co-investments in companies in conjunction with other investors. Our goal is ultimately to realize gains upon our disposition of such equity interests. However, the equity interests we receive may not appreciate in value and, in fact, may decline in value. Accordingly, we may not be able to realize gains from our equity interests, and any gains that we do realize on the disposition of any equity interests may not be sufficient to offset any other losses we experience. We also may be unable to realize any value if a company we provide capital to does not have a liquidity event, such as a sale of the business, recapitalization or public offering, which would allow us to sell the underlying equity interests. We expect to seek puts or similar rights to give us the right to sell our equity interests back

to the issuer, but we may be unable to exercise these puts rights for the consideration provided or our estimates if the issuer is in financial distress.

-49-

Table of Contents

Signature may issue shares of common stock as consideration in its acquisition and joint venture transactions, which would result in dilution of our shareholders. In addition to other forms of consideration, we may issue shares of our common stock in connection with future acquisitions or joint venture transactions that we may enter into. The issuance of shares of our common stock in such transactions may result in dilute our then existing shareholders following any such issuance.

Signature's intention to not become an investment company subject the Investment Company Act of 1940 as amended may impose constraints on our operations. We intend to conduct our operations so that we are not required to register as an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, which we refer to as the Investment Company Act. Section 3(a)(1)(C) of the Investment Company Act defines as an investment company any issuer that is engaged or proposes to engage in the business of investing, reinvesting, owning, holding or trading in securities and owns or proposes to acquire investment securities having a value exceeding 40.0% of the value of the issuer's total assets (exclusive of government securities and cash items) on an unconsolidated basis. Excluded from the term "investment securities" are, among other things, securities issued by majority-owned subsidiaries that are not themselves investment companies and are not relying on the exception from the definition of investment company in Section 3(c)(1) or Section 3(c)(7) of the Investment Company Act.

We may be compelled to take or refrain from taking actions, to acquire additional income or loss generating assets or to forego opportunities that might otherwise be beneficial to us in order to ensure that we (or one of our subsidiaries) may continue to rely on the applicable exceptions or exemptions under the Investment Company Act. These limitations on our freedom of action could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

If we fail to maintain an exemption, exception or other exclusion from registration as an investment company, we could, among other things, be required to substantially change the manner in which we conduct our operations either to avoid being required to register as an investment company or to register as an investment company. If we were required to register as an investment company under the Investment Company Act, we would become subject to substantial regulation with respect to, among other things, our capital structure (including our ability to use leverage), management, operations, transactions with affiliated persons (as defined in the Investment Company Act), portfolio composition, including restrictions with respect to diversification and industry concentration, and our financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

On the Effective Date, the Signature Investors purchased an aggregate of 12.5 million shares of Signature's common stock for an aggregate of \$10 million in cash pursuant to the terms of subscription agreements between the Company and each of the Signature Investors. In accordance with the Plan, Signature's common stock was issued and sold to the Signature Investors without registration in reliance on the exemption set forth in Section 4(2) of the Securities Act. Pursuant to the Plan, Signature also issued the Warrants, which were exercisable for an aggregate of 15 million shares of Signature's common stock to the Warrant Investors for an aggregate cash purchase price of \$300,000. The Warrants have a term of 10 years and an exercise price of \$1.03 per share. The Warrants vested 20% on the Effective Date and will vest 20% in annual installments until the Warrants are fully vested on the fourth anniversary of the Effective Date. The \$300,000 purchase price for the Warrants is payable as the Warrants vest. Accordingly, the Warrant Investors paid an aggregate amount of \$60,000 on the Effective Date and will pay \$60,000 in the aggregate on each subsequent vesting installment. The Warrants were issued to the Warrant Investors without registration in reliance on the exemption set forth in Section 4(2) of the Securities Act. For additional information about the issuance and sale of the Signature common stock and the Warrants on the Effective Date, see Note 2 Significant Events in 2010 in the Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Form 10-O.

On June 25, 2010, Signature issued 21 million shares of Signature's common stock to the TOPrS holders in connection with the TOPrS Settlement. Each holder received its pro rata portion of the aggregate shares issued. For additional information about the sale of Signature common stock to the TOPrS holders, see Note 2 Significant Events in 2010 in the Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Form 10-Q.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4. Reserved

-50-

Table of Contents

Item 5. Other Information

None.

Item 6. Exhibits

(a)(3) and (b) Exhibits.

Exhibit Description No. 2.1 Signature Group Holdings, LLC's Chapter 11 Fourth Amended Plan of Reorganization of Fremont General Corporation, Joined by James McIntyre as Co-Plan Proponent, dated May 24, 2010, as amended (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 1, 2010, Commission File Number 001-08007) 2.2 Order Confirming Fourth Amended Chapter 11 Plan of Reorganization. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 1, 2010, Commission File Number 001-08007) 3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Fremont General Corporation. (hereby changed to Signature Group Holdings, Inc.). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 17, 2010, Commission File Number 001-08007) 3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Signature Group Holdings, Inc. dated January 27, 2011. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 21, 2011, Commission File Number 001-08007) 4.1 Form of Stock Certificate for Common Stock of Signature Group Holdings, Inc. with new CUSIP. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 13 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 17, 2010, Commission File Number 001-08007) 4.2 Form of Warrant. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 17, 2010, Commission File Number 001-08007) 4.3 Form of Signature Group Holdings, Inc. 9.0% Notes due December 31, 2016. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 22, 2010, Commission File Number 001-08007) 4.4 Indenture between Signature Group Holdings, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee for the holders of the Company's 9.0% Notes due December 31, 2016. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 22, 2010, Commission File Number 001-08007) 10.1 Form of Registration Rights Agreement entered into between the Company and the investors thereto. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 17, 2010, Commission File Number 001-08007)

	Interim Investment Management Agreement by and between the Company and Signature Capital Advisers, LLC dated June 11, 2010 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 17, 2010, Commission File Number 001-08007)
<u>31.1</u>	Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) under the
	Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
31.2	Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
	,
<u>32.1</u>	Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.
32.2	Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.
-51-	

Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SIGNATURE GROUP HOLDINGS, INC.

Dated: July 1, 2011 By: /s/ Craig Noell

Craig Noell

President and Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: July 1, 2011 By: /s/ Kyle Ross

Kyle Ross

Executive Vice President, Interim Chief Financial Officer and Assistant

Secretary

(Principal Accounting and Financial

Officer)